
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
Board Meeting Agenda: February 16-18, 2021 


Virtual Meeting 
Juneau, Alaska 


Alaska Commission on Aging Board Meeting Agenda 
February 16-18, 2021 


Page 1 


 


 


 
 
 


Join Zoom Meeting OR Call in by phone: +1 669 900 6833 
 
https://zoom.us/j/97874103478 


  +1 253 215 8782 


Meeting ID: 978 7410 3478 
Passcode: 907 


 


 
Day 1 


Tuesday, February 16, 2021 
 
 


9 :00 am Call to Order - 
Roll Call - 
Approval of Minutes from September meeting and December meeting 


 
 


9:05 am Changes to the Agenda 
 
 


9 :10 am Committee Chair Reports 
Executive Committee 
Legislative Committee 
Bylaws Committee 


 
 


9 : 45 am ACoA Staff Reports 
Executive Director - Update 
Rural Long-Term Coordinator - Update 
Planner I – Update 


 
10:10 am Governors Council on Disabilities and Special Education -Nona Safra 


10 :30 am Alaska Housing Finance Corporation, Jim McCall 


11:00 am BREAK 



https://zoom.us/j/97874103478





ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
Board Meeting Agenda: February 16-18, 2021 


Virtual Meeting 
Juneau, Alaska 


Alaska Commission on Aging Board Meeting Agenda 
February 16-18, 2021 


Page 2 


 


 


 
 
 


Day 1 (continued)  
 
11:15 am Legislative Training 
 Teri Tibbets 


 


  
12: 30 pm Lunch Break 


 
1 :00 Medicare Information Office, Dana Barnett 


 


 
1 :30 Pioneer Home Advisory Board, Bob Pawlowski 


  
1:50 AARP – Teresa Holt and Marge Stoneking 


 


  
2:10 AMAC – Robert Coltier 


  
2 :30 Division of Senior and Disabilities Services, John Lee 


  
3 :00 Voices from Rural Alaska - Dana Paperman, Seward Senior Center 


  
3 :15 Break 


  
3 :30 Alaska Long Term Care Ombudsman- Stephanie Wheeler 


  
4 :00 Public Comment 


  
4 :30 Meeting Adjourn until tomorrow morning 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
Board Meeting Agenda: February 16-18, 2021 


Virtual Meeting 
Juneau, Alaska 


Alaska Commission on Aging Board Meeting Agenda 
February 16-18, 2021 


Page 3 


 


 


 
 
 


Join Zoom Meeting OR Call in by phone: +1 669 900 6833 
 
https://zoom.us/j/97874103478 


  +1 253 215 8782 


Meeting ID: 978 7410 3478 
Passcode: 907 


 


 
Day 2 


Wednesday February 17, 2021 
 
 


 9 :00 am Call to order 
Roll Call 


 
9 :05 am Div ision of Senior and Disabilities Services Grants 


Update on senior programs during Covid -Kristina Moore-Jager 


9:30 am Director Division of Vocational Rehabilitation, Duane Mayes 


10:00 am Mental HealthTrust update and Crisis Now Presentation 
Kelda Barstad and Mike Abbot 


 
 


11:00 am Break 
 
 


11 :15 am Department of Health and Social Services, Commissioner Adam Crum 


12:00 pm AGENET – Marianne Mills 


12:30 pm     Adjourn  
 
 
1:00 pm – 5:00 pm       Meet with Legislators   



https://zoom.us/j/97874103478





ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
Board Meeting Agenda: February 16-18, 2021 


Virtual Meeting 
Juneau, Alaska 


Alaska Commission on Aging Board Meeting Agenda 
February 16-18, 2021 


Page 4 


 


 


 
 


Join Zoom Meeting OR Call  in by phone: +1 669 900 6833 
+1 253 215 8782 


https://zoom.us/j/97874103478 
 


Meeting ID: 978 7410 3478 
Passcode: 907 


 
 
 


Thursday, February 18, 2021 
 
 
9:00 am – 3:30 pm      Meet with Legislators 


 
 


4 :00 pm Call to order 
Legislative Visits De-brief - Commissioners 


 
 


5 :00 Adjourn 



https://zoom.us/j/97874103478










1 
 


February 10, 2021 
 
To: Alaska Commission on Aging 
From:  Stephanie Wheeler, 
 Long Term Care Ombudsman 
Sub: Report for Quarterly Meeting 
 
Good News 


• The LTCOP team will resume in-person visitations after almost a year of no in-person visits 
due to COVID 19 


• Our Assistant and Deputy Ombudsmen have received their COVID 19 vaccinations 
• Reentry Protocols are in place 
• Office received extra funding during the pandemic - $100,000.  The team will use these 


funds to purchase PPE and other supplies, increase travel, support team to do additional in-
person visitations. 


 
Office Transitions 


• LTCOP will add a temporary Assistant Ombudsman to the team from March 2021 to October 
2021 to help do in-person visitations across the state of Alaska. 


• LTCO Specialist (Kerri Tanner) will move into the role of Assistant Ombudsman during this 
time. 


• The LTCOP is currently advertising for a temporary LTCO Specialist to fill Kerri’s position. 
 


COVID 19 Response  
• The LTCO Team will continue to work remotely through the end of the August 2021. 
• In-person visits will begin in March 2021.   
• Office will follow all safety protocols including screening for illness, checking temperatures 


before visitations, wearing PPE, social distancing, hand hygiene. 
• The LTCOP continues to  meet weekly with our collaborating long-term care stakeholders 


such as residential licensing, state survey agency (health facilities, licensing and 
certification), Mountain -Pacific Quality Health, Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home 
Association, and AARP. 


• LTCOP team continues to participate in information sharing sessions with our state long 
term care agencies as well as our National Association of Ombudsman Program. 


• Additional Staff and Volunteer Training included information on COVID 19, social isolation 
and resources for residents, mental health, Trauma Inform Awareness, Dementia, PPE, 
Communication Tools 


• Provided resources via email, Facebook, twitter and website on COVID 19 
 
How did COVID impact the work of the LTCOP 
 
During the wake of COVID 19, the CDC issued recommendations preventing in-person visits to long-term 
care facilities.  Since Ombudsmen were not considered essential workers, the LTCO were also prevented 
from doing in-person visitations, which consequently impacted our travel budget.  While we ceased in-
person visits in facilities in March 2020, our role was to continue to support residents within the context 
of the pandemic.  The LTCOP changed the way that we ordinarily do business and moved to support 
residents and family members through virtual visitations.  During this time of the pandemic, the 







2 
 


Ombudsman still responded to and investigated complaints brought to us by residents, their 
representatives and family members.  
 
In addition to virtual visitations, the LTCOP created monthly town hall forums to provide information to 
residents.  The monthly forums were also an opportunity for residents to share information with the 
LTCOP.   
 
While we continued to support residents in long term care facilities, the statistics below shows how 
COVID-19 impacted our work.  The statistics show a/an: 


• Decrease in facility visits  
• Decrease in open cases 
• Decrease in closed cases 
• Decrease in complaints received  
• Increase in consultations to LTC facilities 
• Increase in Information and consultation to Individuals. 


 
The decreases in facility visits, open cases, closed cases, and complaints received can all be explained to 
the lack of in person visitations and lack of in person observations/verification of complaints. 
 
The increases in consultations to facilities and individuals can be also be explained by not having in-
person visitations.  Residents and staff of facilities reached out more to the LTCO office. 
 
Data by Comparison between 2019 and 2020 


 2019 2020  
In-Person Facility Visits 1008 403 The LTCOP ceased doing in-person 


facility visits March 5, 2020. 
Open Cases 367 282  
Closed Cases 388 261  
Complaints received 583 372  
Consults to Facilities 298 469  
Information and Consultation 
to Individuals 


346 545  


Volunteer hours 905 436 In 2019, the LTCOP had 60 certified 
volunteers that provided 905 hours 
of volunteer time including in-
person visits to residents across the 
state of Alaska. 
In 2020, the LTCOP had more 
volunteers (68), however these 
volunteers were not able to do in-
person visitations. Many of our 
volunteers were also at risk due to 
the age of our volunteers. 


 
As the effects of the pandemic are mitigated, the LTCOP looks forward to resuming in-person contacts 
with residents in long-term care facilities across the State of Alaska.   
 







3 
 


Volunteers 
• Certified Volunteers have not been in facilities since March 2021 
• LTCOP will be offering a refresher course to all volunteers before they begin visiting facilities 


in May. 
• Begin recruiting new volunteers.  Next volunteer training will be in the summer of 2021.   
• Continue to have monthly Volunteer Meetings (virtually via Zoom) 
• Challenge – retaining our volunteers, keeping them engaged and ensuring their health and 


safety as many of our volunteers are over the age of 60. 
 
What’s Next: 


• Resume In-person visits to facilities 
• Hire a temporary specialist for the Office 
• Support our volunteers to return to in-person visits in May. 
• Work with APS to coordinate efforts on educating volunteers, family councils, resident 


councils, family members and residents about abuse and neglect identification and 
prevention.   


• Do some training around facility-initiated discharge and evictions to skilled nursing facilities. 
• Continue town hall forums with residents in long term care facilities (move to quarterly 


instead of monthly). 
• Engage more with resident and family councils in long-term care facilities. 












Medicare 
Information 
Office
DANA BARNETT FEBRUARY 16,  2021







Alaskans helping Alaskans 
get more out of their Medicare


•O N E -ON-ONE CO U N SEL ING TO  M E D ICARE B E N EFICI ARIES  AN D  TH E IR  FAM IL IES


•T I P S  O N  H O W  TO  S P OT  AN D  R E POR T M E D ICARE E R R ORS,  WAS TE AN D  F R AU D


•G R O UP O U TREACH & E D U CAT ION  E VE NTS
-







Medicare Information Office
Alaska SHIP, SMP, & MIPPA


In Alaska we are known as the State of Alaska 
Dept. of Health & Social Services,   Senior & 
Disabilities Services  Medicare Information 
Office


Nationally we are known as the State Health 
Insurance Program (SHIP), Senior Medicare 
Patrol (SMP), and Medicare Improvement for 
Patients & Providers Act (MIPPA) 


SHIP


SMP


MIPPA


Medicare 
Information 


Office


February 2021







4February 2021


Dana Barnett 
Program Coordinator
(907) 269-3669
Dana.Barnett@alaska.gov


Jeanné Larson 
Project Assistant
(907) 269-3649
Jeanne.Larson@alaska.gov


Colton Percy 
Volunteer Coordinator
(907) 269-4158
Colton.Percy@alaska.gov


Heather Anderson
Office Assistant
(907) 334-0841
Heather.Anderson@alaska.gov


Helpline: (907) 269-3680 or 1-800-478-6065
Email: hss.medicare@alaska.gov


Medicare Information Office Staff



mailto:dana.Barnett@alaska.gov

mailto:Jeanne.Larson@alaska.gov

mailto:Colton.Percy@alaska.gov

mailto:Heather.Anderson@alaska.gov





Volunteer Coordinator Position
Who were we looking for?


Analytical/Assessment


Customer Service


Teaching Others


Interpersonal Skills
59,437 62,437 65,397 66,608


70,702 74,134 77,403
83,721


87,878 91,879
96,213


100,297
104,608


0


20,000


40,000


60,000


80,000


100,000


120,000


2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020


Alaskans on Medicare


Alaskans on Medicare







Volunteers & Partners


Current recruiting for all Volunteer 


Positions. 


Looking for Volunteers in Southeast 


Alaska & Kenai Peninsula 


This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA



http://www.sixthward.us/2013/03/chatham-parks-few-good-men-and-women.html

https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/





Medicare 
Counseling 
and Outreach 
Grants 
Anchorage Senior Activity Center


Access Alaska Fairbanks.


 Conduct local public education events about Medicare


 Provide one-to-one Medicare counseling 


 Identify local volunteers interested in Medicare 
counseling and refer them to the MIO for training and 
certification


 (Anchorage SMP program only) Empower Alaskans to 
prevent Medicare fraud by presenting SMP seminars to 
seniors on preventing, detecting, and reporting 
Medicare fraud and working with other organizations to 
prevent healthcare fraud







Challenges the 
Office is Facing
H A R D  TO  R E C R U I T V O LU N TE E RS


C O R O N AV I RU S  V A C CI N E  S C H E D ULI N G


D U A L  E L I GI B LE ,  B U Y  I N  P R O C ES S ,  A N D  S T R U G GL ES  W I T H  M E D I CAR E  B E N E ’ S  L O S I N G B U Y  I N







2021 MIO Focus 


Increase Statewide 
Outreach, 


Education, and 
one-on-one 
Medicare 


Counseling


1. Increase Certified Medicare 
Counselors Volunteers assisting with 
one-on-one individual interactions in 
their community. 


2. Increase individuals attending 
group outreach and education 
events.


3. Increasing statewide outreach, 
education, and dissemination of 
Medicare Information







https://www.pinterest.com/pin/527413806335890059/


THE MEDICARE INFORMATION OFFICE 


WE ARE ALASKAN’S HELPING ALASKAN’S 
GET  MORE OUT OF THEIR MEDICARE 
INSURANCE. 


How are we reaching the needs of our 
Alaskan Medicare Beneficiaries?
• Creating a Volunteer Coordinator 


Position
• Promoting Education Events
• Building Partnerships w/key 


Agencies


Dana Barnett 
Program Coordinator
(907) 269-3669
Dana.Barnett@alaska.gov



mailto:dana.Barnett@alaska.gov



		Medicare Information Office

		Alaskans helping Alaskans �get more out of their Medicare��

		Medicare Information Office�Alaska SHIP, SMP, & MIPPA

		Medicare Information Office Staff

		Volunteer Coordinator Position

		Volunteers & Partners

		Medicare Counseling and Outreach Grants 

		Challenges the Office is Facing

		2021 MIO Focus ��Increase Statewide Outreach, Education, and one-on-one Medicare Counseling�

		https://www.pinterest.com/pin/527413806335890059/










ALASKA COMMISSION ON  AGING 


P.O. Box 110693 
Juneau, AK 99811-0693 


Main: 907.465.3250  
Fax: 907.465.139 


     February 2, 2021 


Senator David Wilson 
Alaska State Capitol, Room 121 
Juneau, Alaska 99811-0001 


Subject: ACoA Letter of Support, SB 56 


Dear Senator Wilson: 


The Alaska Commission on Aging (ACoA) is pleased to offer support for SB 56, that would extend the 
COVID-19 Pubic Health Disaster Emergency until it is determined COVID-19 is no longer a threat to public 
health or September 31, 2021.  Extending the COVID-19 Public Health Emergency Disaster Declaration 
would allow for temporary changes in continued response to the COVID-19 outbreak, many of which 
would benefit the health and safety of Alaskan seniors.   


SB 56 allows for rapid procurement and hiring for the response. Essential elements when it comes 
to Alaska vaccine distribution plan and enabling the Department of Health and Social Services to set 
up mass vaccine clinics quickly to put shots in arms – renting of space, hiring of contractors,  
securing medical personnel. 


Extension of the Disaster Declaration also provides the state  with flexibility in the delivery of  
healthcare (telehealth) and maximizing our workforce in Alaska – expedited and courtesy licensing, 
especially in fields where we are shorthanded in health care providers. 


Only under the Disaster provisions in AS 26.23.020(g)(10) can the Governor “allocate or redistribute 
food, water, fuel, clothing, medicine, or supplies” which includes the scare vaccine allocations and 
therapeutics being used to treat COVID-19 such and monoclonal antibodies.  This has allowed us to 
have the vaccine tiers which have prioritized seniors.   


The Alaska Commission on Aging applauds the efforts of the Governor and the Department of 
Health and Social Services in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and supports the extension of the 
Disaster Emergency to continue implementation of an effective response.  


Sincerely, Sincerely, 


Lisa Morley, ACoA Executive Director Gordon Glaser, ACoA Board Chair 












July 2019                                                                                                                                  Page | 1 


 


The Nurse Licensure Compact:  
A Bad Option for Alaska 


Position Statement by the Alaska Nurses Association  


 


The Alaska Nurses Association (AaNA) is the recognized leader and voice of all nurses in 
Alaska and works with the Alaska Board of Nursing on issues that affect nurse licensure 
and practice in our state.  


The National Council of State Boards of Nursing (NCSBN), a private, Chicago-based trade 
association, has created a Nurse Licensure Compact for multistate nursing practice. The 
Compact authorizes nurses in participating states to practice in all other Compact states 
under multistate privileges authorized by the nurse’s state of residence without obtaining 
additional licensure in any additional states. Implementing the Compact in Alaska would 
allow nurses from other states to practice nursing in Alaska without obtaining an Alaska 
nursing license.   


Currently, thirty-three states have joined the Nurse Licensure Compact. Alaska’s 
participation in the Nurse Licensure Compact is subject to state legislative approval. AaNA 
has examined how this Compact licensure would affect registered nurses in our state if 
Alaska joined the Nurse Licensure Compact.  


After careful review, the Alaska Nurses Association continues to have numerous 
concerns and remains strongly opposed to the adoption of the Nurse Licensure 
Compact in Alaska.  


The Nurse Licensure Compact poses significant new complications for regulating nursing 
practice while eroding Alaska’s state sovereignty and our carefully crafted laws and 
regulations, and, as such, threatens the public’s health. The Compact is a bad option for 
Alaska, for Alaskan nurses, and for Alaskan patients.  


 


Loss of State Sovereignty  


The Nurse Licensure Compact is a states’ rights issue. Alaska currently enjoys complete 
autonomy over the regulation of the profession of nursing, allowing local experts to make 
local decisions that are best for our state. Joining the Nurse Licensure Compact would 
erode Alaska’s sovereignty. The Compact imposes complicated regulatory mechanisms 
including a powerful new “Interstate Commission” for the Compact with the power to adopt 
rules and assess payments from the states. The Commission’s rules and decisions are 
binding on all member states. Yet there is no independent oversight or accountability for 
their decisions.  


The Compact unnecessarily complicates state regulation, essentially creating two separate, 
simultaneously-functioning regulatory structures for the profession of nursing in Alaska – 
one system for nurses holding an Alaska license, and another for out-of-state nurses with 
Compact licenses. This unnecessarily complicates and impedes the State’s regulatory 
abilities.  
 
Additionally, the Commission’s operations are not transparent. The Commission has the 
opportunity to hold closed, non-public meetings for certain reasons and would have 







July 2019                                                                                                                                  Page | 2 


 


immunity to lawsuits. Procedures for rulemaking do not include any specific length for 
comment periods. The Compact also provides for emergency rulemaking, using a notably 
broad approach to determining when “emergency” rules are needed. Many of the provisions 
may in fact violate the Alaska Constitution and the Alaska Open Meetings Act.  


If Alaska adopts the Nurse Licensure Compact, we will have ceded our right to determine 
and enforce the standards for practice that our policymakers have determined are 
necessary to protect the public.  


 


Threat to Public Safety  


Inability to Monitor Nurses and Discipline Unsafe Conduct 


The purpose of the Alaska Board of Nursing is to protect the health and safety of the 
Alaskan public by regulating the practice of nursing in our state. Under the Compact, there 
is no way to track nurses coming into your state to practice from another participating state. 
The lack of such basic information hinders the State’s ability to protect the public.  


Past experience shared by the Alaska Board of Nursing has shown a few nurses have tried 
to “escape” the Lower 48 to practice in Alaska. Because all nurses working in Alaska must 
apply for an Alaska nursing license, our dedicated Board of Nursing was able to deny their 
license applications and prevent them from functioning as a nurse in Alaska. By joining the 
Compact, Alaska would no longer approve or deny the license applications of out-of-state 
Compact nurses and would lose the ability to enforce Alaska’s high standards for quality 
nursing practice.  


Besides the licensing of qualified candidates, the functions of the board of nursing include 
the investigation of complaints against licensees and hearings with administrative law 
judges. States vary in their disciplinary procedures and standards: conduct that would result 
in an investigation and discipline in one state may not do so in another state. Depending on 
the state in which the conduct occurs, it may not be reported at all. If Alaska investigates a 
nurse and finds that disciplinary action is warranted, but the Compact state does not agree, 
no action is taken against that nurse. This needlessly puts the Alaskan public at risk. 


 


Lower Standards for Nurses = Worse Care for Patients  


States participating in the Nurse Licensure Compact are required to operate under the 
National Council of State Boards of Nursing’s Uniform Licensure Requirements. These 
uniform licensure requirements are often less stringent than individualized state licensing 
requirements. Furthermore, license renewal requirements are controlled by the state that 
issues the Compact license, not by the state in which the nurse practices. 


Disciplinary Action and Criminal Offenses 


Although the uniform licensure requirements demand that a nurse must have graduated 
from an approved education program and can have no state or federal felony convictions, 
nor have any misdemeanor convictions related to the practice of nursing, there are 
worrisome inconsistencies between states in relation to these requirements, all of which 
impede the State’s ability to regulate practice in a constitutionally mandated manner and 
can create confusion for nurses. Of particular concern: 


 Each state has different criteria for disciplinary action. 







July 2019                                                                                                                                  Page | 3 


 


 Each state is able to make its own case-by-case determination of whether a 
misdemeanor conviction is related to the practice of nursing, and to decide whether 
–and to what degree and of which type– disciplinary action should be taken.  


 Felony offense statutes are not standardized across states. What constitutes a 
misdemeanor in Arkansas may arise to the level of a felony under Alaska law, yet 
the State of Alaska would no longer have the ability to bar that nurse from coming to 
Alaska and caring for patients in our state.  


Nursing Education Programs and Continuing Education 


States vary widely in regard to nursing education program requirements, particularly with 
regard to requirements for supervised clinical experiences. In order to ensure that new 
nurses are highly educated and prepared to care for Alaskan patients, the State of Alaska 
requires each new nurse to have graduated from a nationally accredited school. Other 
Compact states do not have the same rigorous standards for nursing education programs. 
In other words, if Alaska were to join the Compact, Alaskan patients could be taken care of 
by new nurses who have received subpar education and have little hands-on experience 
with patients.  


In terms of continuing education requirements, a nurse holding a Compact license must 
meet the continuing education requirements for his or her own state. Each state has 
different requirements and some states do not require any number of hours of continuing 
education. Alaska’s license renewal requirements emphasize the fact that nursing requires 
constant learning. To demonstrate their continued competency, Alaskan nurses must meet 
two of the following criteria every two years:  


1. Complete 30 hours of continuing education or be currently nationally certified in a 
specialty area of nursing; 


2. Complete 60 hours of uncompensated volunteer nursing activities; 
3. Work 320 hours.   


The Compact would allow out-of-state nurses practicing here to circumvent Alaska’s 
continued competency and education requirements. 


Scope of Practice 


Nurses practicing in Alaska must be knowledgeable of and operate under Alaska’s Nurse 
Practice Act, which defines what nurses are and are not allowed to do, and under whose 
supervision they must work. Each state has its own Nurse Practice Act and a nurse’s scope 
of practice differs in each state. For example, in most states, including Alaska, registered 
nurses cannot dispense medication or perform examinations. However, eight states allow 
one or both of these medical activities to be performed by registered nurses.  


As a state not participating in the Compact, Alaska’s current method of requiring Alaska 
licensure for every nurse practicing in our state ensures that nurses working in Alaska are 
knowledgeable of Alaskan standards and regulations. In joining the Compact, there would 
be no way to enforce or verify that nonresident nurses possess the same necessary 
regulatory knowledge as their Alaskan counterparts. This has the potential to create 
needless confusion and disagreement for nurses working side by side caring for a patient 
as to what specific care they are allowed to provide. 


If an out-of-state Compact nurse were to violate Alaska’s Nurse Practice Act, the Alaska 
Board of Nursing would have no ability to discipline the nurse. Rather, the decision to 
discipline would be left to the nurse’s home state. If the home state declined to issue 
discipline for the scope of practice violation, the nurse could continue working in Alaska, 







July 2019                                                                                                                                  Page | 4 


 


which would not only lead to a dilution of Alaska’s Nurse Practice Act and current high 
standards for the profession of nursing, but also pose a clear threat to the Alaskan public.  


The lack of comprehensive standardization between states coupled with the Nurse 
Licensure Compact’s lowest common denominator approach to regulating the nursing 
profession seriously compromises public safety.   


 


Loss of State Revenue & Increased Financial Burden to Alaskans 


The Alaska Board of Nursing is currently required to be financially self-sufficient; the Board 
receives no funds from the Legislature to operate. Operational funds are derived from the 
collection of application and licensing fees.  


Licenses issued to nonresident nurses represent a sizeable proportion of application and 
licensing fees collected by the Alaska Board of Nursing. If Alaska joined the Nurse 
Licensure Compact, travel agency nurses and other non-resident nurses would no longer 
need to obtain an Alaska nursing license to work in the state. This represents a significant 
loss of revenue to the Board of Nursing. After the state of Montana joined the Nurse 
Licensure Compact, the initial revenue loss for just the five-month period following the start 
of FY2017 totaled $447,321, according to a report from the Montana Nurses Association. In 
2014, the Kansas Board of Nursing predicted a $376,667 loss of revenue if it joined the 
Compact, and declined to do so. Other states which have joined the Compact have 
experienced significant reductions in revenue as well.  


In addition to declining revenue, joining the Nurse Licensure Compact would increase 
expenses to the Board of Nursing. Because the Board of Nursing is required to investigate 
complaints against licensees, these investigation expenses would remain with the Board of 
Nursing regardless of whether the nurse has paid licensing fees to the State. It is not fair for 
the Alaska Board of Nursing to pay for this investigative cost when the Compact nurse has 
not paid anything to work in Alaska. Because all disciplinary fines collected go to the State’s 
general fund rather than to the Board of Nursing, the Board would be unable to recoup even 
a small portion of these investigatory costs. Additional funds would also be needed for the 
required Licensure Compact Administrator and increased operating expenses associated 
with participating in the Compact. The combination of reduced revenue and increased 
expenses could leave the Board of Nursing financially insolvent and require the Board of 
Nursing to receive funding from the Legislature or pass on an additional expense to Alaskan 
nurses in the form of higher licensing fees.  


In fact, it is certain that Alaskan nurses would face increasing expenses if Alaska joined the 
Compact. Alaska has one of the highest licensing renewal fees in the nation. The current 
cost to renew an RN license in Alaska for a two-year period is $200. According to analysis 
reviewed by the Alaska Board of Nursing, an Alaskan nurse would see this fee increase by 
$46 to $83 at the next renewal period if Alaska joined the Compact (Alaska Board of 
Nursing Minutes, May 2018).   


A large beneficiary of the nursing Compacts are out-of-state nurse travel agencies. Travel 
agencies cover nurses’ travel costs along with all their licensing fees in the specific states 
they choose to work in. The Compact saves this business industry a lot of money in 
licensing fees that would otherwise would go to the individual states.    


While the Nurse Licensure Compact is a financially advantageous situation for out-of-state 
companies, the State of Alaska and its residents would face increased financial burden.  


 







July 2019                                                                                                                                  Page | 5 


 


Compact will not Solve Workforce Needs or Improve Access to Care 


Despite claims that the Compact will solve workforce needs and improve access to care, 
there is no evidence that it would do so for Alaska. One common claim by proponents of the 
Nurse Licensure Compact is that some states have lengthy delays in issuing licenses to 
nurses. This is not true of Alaska. On the contrary, auditors have found that the Board of 
Nursing is able to issue licenses in a timely manner, with approximately 90 percent of the 
nursing applicants being issued licenses within 90 days of submittal. In comparison, in 
Illinois a new nursing graduate can take 3 to 6 months to get a license. The Board of 
Nursing also has regulations in place (12 AAC 44.318.) to grant courtesy nursing licenses in 
the case of emergent needs. A few years ago the Board exercised the use of courtesy 
licenses in order to meet an increased need for nurses caused by a respiratory syncytial 
virus outbreak in Barrow. In addition, the Board of Nursing can issue expedited licenses and 
temporary permits should an employer need assistance in obtaining nurses quickly.  


The Compact does not suddenly nor magically create a pool of nurses to fill staffing 
vacancies at needy facilities. It would not create a sudden influx of nurses choosing to move 
and live and practice in Alaska. Nurses wishing to practice in Alaska on a temporary basis 
may already do so as travel nurses. Since licensing costs for travel nurses are covered by 
nurse staffing agencies, there is no financial cost to the individual nurse for taking travel 
assignments in the state of Alaska. Furthermore, there is no evidence suggesting that 
nurses wishing to move to and practice in Alaska on a permanent basis are dissuaded from 
doing so due to licensing costs or the necessity of obtaining an Alaska nursing license. 
Destabilizing the financial integrity of the Board of Nursing for a scheme that has no 
documented impact on addressing nursing workforce needs nor improving patients’ access 
to care is a needless risk. 


 


Conclusion 


Unfortunately, policy makers who have concerns about any provisions of the Nurse 
Licensure Compact have no opportunity to address these problematic components. In order 
to join the Compact, Alaska would be forced to participate under the current and future 
binding requirements of the National Council of State Boards of Nursing’s Interstate 
Commission.  


Thus, the only two options available to Alaska are: 


• To join the Nurse Licensure Compact as is, despite multiple serious concerns; or 


• To reject the Compact. 


 


The “one-size-fits-most” Nurse Licensure Compact is a bad fit for Alaska. The Alaska 
Nurses Association remains committed to working with the Alaska Board of Nursing and 
others on effective regulatory measures that are workable and realistic, that offer real 
solutions, and that respect state sovereignty. None of this, unfortunately, describes the 
Nurse Licensure Compact. The Compact would harm Alaskans. We can and must work 
toward better approaches that put Alaskans first.  








 


 


 


 


 
          


 
 


          
    


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


From: Hoskinson, Glenn A (CED) 
To: Morley, Lisa A (HSS) 
Cc: Robert Sivertsen (rwsivertsen@gmail.com); Thompson, Lesley M (HSS); Chambers, Sara C (CED) 
Subject: RE: Nurse Licensure Compact Legislation: SB 67 
Date: Tuesday, February 9, 2021 4:17:16 PM 
Attachments: AARP Support for NLC (2.19.20).pdf 


SB 179 from DHSS Commissioner Crum 3.12.2020.PDF 
Julie Taylor (Alaska Regional Hospital) 3.4.20.pdf 


Hi Lisa, 


Thank you so much for the offer. I would love to speak to the Commission about the benefits of 
joining the Nurse Licensure Compact on Thursday. I would also like to include Director Sara 
Chambers to present with me if she’s available. Could you please clarify what we should prepare for 
the presentation (i.e., do we need a PowerPoint presentation, or should we simply plan to provide a 
verbal presentation and answer questions)? 


To answer Lesley’s earlier email from yesterday (and I’m sorry it took me a day to get back on that), 
the Alaska Nurses Association (AaNA) was the only opposing organization to the NLC legislation last 
year. AaNA noted five (5) main concerns with joining the compact (noted below). We met with them 
last year and explained that the State Board of Nursing does not agree with these concerns, at that 
the concerns appear to be relevant to the previous version of the NLC (which the Board of Nursing 
did not support), but not to the enhanced version of the NLC which was adopted/implemented in 
2017-2018, replacing the previous version. They have continued to list these five concerns are 
reasons not to adopt the NLC in Alaska, but we are unsure why that is. 


Lesley also asked for copies of letters of support that were provided for the NLC bill last year (HB 
238/SB 179). I’m attaching letters from AARP, DHSS, and the Alaska Regional Hospital. We have 
many others, so if you’d like to see those – or if you’re interested in seeing the results of the survey 
we sent out to all Alaskan Nurses at the end of the 2019 to gauge interest in joining the NLC, just let 
me know. 


Below are the concerns listed by the Alaska Nursing Association, and our feedback on each of those 
individual concerns: 


· AaNA: Loss of State Sovereignty. 
DCCED/Board of Nursing: Full authority over practice in Alaska. The Alaska Board of 
Nursing will still have full authority over the practice of Nursing in Alaska. If a multi-state
licensed nurse commits a violation while practicing in Alaska, the Board of Nursing will
investigate the complaint (just as they do with complaints now) and have full authority to
tell the licensee they can no longer practice in Alaska. They will then hand the
investigation over to the licensee’s home state for disciplinary actions. 


· AaNA: Threats to Public Safety: 
o AaNA: Inability to Monitor Nurses. 


DCCED/Board of Nursing: Ability to Monitor Nurses Doesn’t Change. While we 
do have a list of all 15,000+ nurses in Alaska, we never know when or where 
they’re practicing in Alaska. There are nurses currently practicing in Alaska that
do not require state licensure, such as those practicing on military bases, etc. 



mailto:glenn.hoskinson@alaska.gov

mailto:lisa.morley@alaska.gov

mailto:rwsivertsen@gmail.com

mailto:lesley.thompson@alaska.gov

mailto:sara.chambers@alaska.gov

http://www.aknurse.org/index.cfm/ISSUES/Nurse-Licensure-Compact/307


























 



Department of  



Health and Social Services 



 
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER  



 



Anchorage 



3601 C Street, Suite 902 



Anchorage, Alaska 99503-5923 



Main: 907.269.7800 



Fax: 907.269.0060 



 



Juneau 



P.O. Box 110601 



350 Main Street, Suite 404 



Juneau, Alaska 99811-0601 



Main: 907.465.3030 



Fax: 907.465.3068 



 



 



 



 



March 12, 2020 



 



The Honorable Cathy Giessel 



President, Alaska State Senate 



Alaska State Capitol, Room 111 



Juneau, AK 99801 



 



Dear Senator Giessel,  



 



The Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS) is pleased to provide this letter of support for 



Senate Bill 179. This bill will allow for a multistate nurse licensure compact that will provide 



multiple benefits to licensing nursing professionals. These include improving multistate nurse 



mobility and enabling nurse educators and telehealth nurses to practice across multiple states. Nurses 



with compact licenses are able to move where they are needed and will be able to provide a full 



scope of practice immediately upon arrival. The passage of this bill will make it easier for nurses to 



assist in Alaska during a disaster. It is no exaggeration to say this bill could play a critical role in 



helping the state successfully navigate its way through the coronavirus pandemic.  



 



The ability to move easily between states is a benefit not only to the nurses, but to employers who 



utilize nursing staff as well. Within DHSS, this includes the Division of Public Health, the Alaska 



Psychiatric Institute, the Alaska Pioneer Homes, the Division of Juvenile Justice, the Office of 



Children’s Services, and the Division of Behavioral Health, all of which have challenges hiring and 



retaining experienced nurses. A compact would streamline hiring nurses from other compacting 



states and allow us to more quickly fill positions in the state’s public health centers and the Alaska 



Psychiatric Institute. Our partners in health care, such as tribal hospitals, nursing and assisted living 



homes, substance use providers, also should see these same benefits.  



 



When there is no delay in waiting for a new license, the nurse can begin working immediately, 



potentially saving months of delay. Additionally, the cost to both the nurse and potentially the 



employer is reduced as there are no additional licensing fees. Currently there are 34 states that have 



joined the Nurse Licensure Compact, many of which also have a significant military presence. 



Adoption of the compact will help facilitate the recruiting and hiring of nurses whose spouses are 



military personnel who move to Alaska.  



 











 
 



SB 179 – Letter of Support 



March 12, 2020 



Page 2 



 
 



The Department of Health and Social Services strongly supports Senate Bill 179.  



 



Sincerely,  



 



 
 



Adam Crum 



Commissioner 



 



 



Cc:  The Honorable David Wilson, Chair, Senate Health & Social Services Committee 



The Honorable Click Bishop, Chair, Senate Labor and Commerce Committee 



  The Honorable Natasha von Imhof, Co-Chair, Senate Finance Committee 



  The Honorable Bert Stedman Co-Chair, Senate Finance Committee 



Suzanne Cunningham, Legislative Director, Office of Governor Mike Dunleavy 



Julie Anderson, Commissioner, Department of Commerce, Community, and 



Economic Development 



  



 



 



 




























mailto:rwsivertsen@gmail.com





    


 
    


 
    


 


    


 
          


 
          


 
           


 


    
   


 
   


        
        


   


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


o AaNA: Lower Standards for Nurses. 
DCCED/Board of Nursing: The standards to obtain a multi-state licensure are 
higher than the standards to receive a single-state license in Alaska. Six of the 
eleven compact requirements are higher than Alaska’s standards. 


o AaNA: Disciplinary Action and Criminal Offenses. 
DCCED/Board of Nursing: The Alaska Board of Nursing still has full authority to
deny a nurse the ability to practice in Alaska if they commit a violation. Anyone
with a criminal history or practice-related misdemeanor won’t qualify for a multi-
state licensure, regardless from which state they try to obtain it. Furthermore, the
compact improves communications between states in these matters, as a licensee
will be “flagged”, and all compact states will be alerted and able to communicate if
a significant event occurs. 


o AaNA: Nursing Education Standards are Lower. 
DCCED/Board of Nursing: All multi-state applicants need to have graduated
from an accredited nursing school, taken the same national exam, and are
required to comply with the continuing education (CE) requirements of their
home state. While CE requirements can vary state-to-state, there is no evidence
that extra continuing education results in higher competency or improved patient 
outcomes. 


o AaNA: Nurses Won’t Stay Within Alaska’s Scope of Practice. 
DCCED/Board of Nursing: Just like today, each licensed nurse is required to
know the laws of the state where they are currently practicing. Sometimes 
vary in the nursing scope of practice. This is similar to the driver’s license
compact. If you have a driver’s license from Alaska and are driving in California,
you must still know and abide by the traffic laws of California. 


· AaNA: Loss of State Revenue & Increased Financial Burden to Alaskans. 
DCCED/Board of Nursing: Most states that have joined the compact do not see a loss of 
revenue. Additionally, licensees will have the option to apply for a single-state or multi-
state license; and the fee structures will be separate for the two types of licenses (meaning
single-state license fees will not go up because of the compact). 


· AaNA: Compact will not Solve Workforce Needs or Improve Access to Care. 
DCCED/Board of Nursing: While joining the compact won’t be the end-all-be-all
solution, it’s a tool in the toolbox to improve healthcare in Alaska. We do believe we’ll 
be able to fill vacancies in the state by joining the compact and are also certain it will
open more telemedicine opportunities. Furthermore, it will significantly improve Alaska’s
healthcare emergency preparedness infrastructure. 


· AaNA: Only non-residents want Alaska to join the Nurse Licensure Compact. 
DCCED/Board of Nursing: The Alaska Board of Nursing sent out a survey to all Alaska-
licensed nurses in the state (over 15,000 licensees) and received over 3,500 responses: 


o Overall, 92% of respondents want Alaska to join the compact. 
o 56% (2,018) of respondents hold primary licensure in Alaska. Of those licensees, 


89% want Alaska to join the compact. 
o The Alaska nursing union has about 1,500 nurses. 743 nurses in a union 


responded to the survey: 87% want to join the compact, 6% had no opinion,
and only 8% said they’d prefer Alaska not join. 


o Of the 1,379 licensees who currently only hold a nursing license in Alaska, 
87% want to join the compact, 7% have no opinion, and only 5% don’t want
to join. 







 
          


 
          


           
     


 
 


 


 


 
  


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


· AaNA: The compact is controlled/governed by a private corporation. 
DCCED/Board of Nursing: The compact is governed by a public organization comprised
of members of each state. Furthermore, the compact is being set in Alaska statute by SB
67, which means the organization cannot change the requirements or law without input
and buy-in from all participating states. Alaska would be a member of the compact.
Further, the compact is governed by a commission which is made up of representatives
from each participating state, meaning the Alaska Board of Nursing Chair and/or
Executive Administrator will have a seat at the table and a voice in that commission. 


· AaNA: Alaskans will move out of Alaska once they get a compact license. 
DCCED/Board of Nursing: We don’t believe in “trapping” nurses in Alaska, nor do we 
think this is actually true. Furthermore, a nurse is required to apply for a multi-state
license in their resident state (they can’t “shop” states), and we believe it will encourage
nurses to stay in Alaska, or at least return to Alaska, while expanding Alaska’s healthcare
workforce and hopefully filling some of the hundreds of nursing vacancies around the
state. The incoming generation is very mobile, and they want to work in a compact state.
We need to adapt if we want to fill some of our nursing vacancies. 


Thank you, 
Glenn Hoskinson 


From: Morley, Lisa A (HSS) <lisa.morley@alaska.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 9, 2021 3:42 PM 
To: Hoskinson, Glenn A (CED) <glenn.hoskinson@alaska.gov> 
Cc: Robert Sivertsen (rwsivertsen@gmail.com) <rwsivertsen@gmail.com>; Thompson, Lesley M 
(HSS) <lesley.thompson@alaska.gov> 
Subject: RE: Nurse Licensure Compact Legislation: SB 67 


Hello Glenn, 


Thank you for reaching out to me.  We are having a Bi-weekly Legislative Teleconference this 
Thursday from 9:30-11 and would welcome your presentation and education about SB 67 if you are 
available. 


To let you know, I have also heard from Shannon Davenport from the Alaska Nurses Association in 
opposition of this bill and was going to ask her to be a guest as well. 


Please let me know if you are interested in attending and/or presenting. 


Thank you, 


Lisa A. Morley 
Executive Director, Alaska Commission on Aging 
240 Main Street 
Juneau, AK 99811 
Desk: 907-465-4879 
Cell: 907-500-2337 



mailto:lesley.thompson@alaska.gov

mailto:rwsivertsen@gmail.com

mailto:rwsivertsen@gmail.com

mailto:glenn.hoskinson@alaska.gov

mailto:lisa.morley@alaska.gov

mailto:lesley.thompson@alaska.gov

mailto:rwsivertsen@gmail.com

mailto:rwsivertsen@gmail.com

mailto:glenn.hoskinson@alaska.gov

mailto:lisa.morley@alaska.gov





 
 


 
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


lisa.morley@alaska.gov 


From: Hoskinson, Glenn A (CED) <glenn.hoskinson@alaska.gov> 
Sent: Friday, February 05, 2021 2:27 PM 
To: Office-JNU-HSS-ACoA (HSS sponsored) <hss.acoa@alaska.gov>; Morley, Lisa A (HSS) 
<lisa.morley@alaska.gov> 
Subject: Nurse Licensure Compact Legislation: SB 67 


Good afternoon Director Morley, 


On Wednesday, Governor Dunleavy reintroduced legislation to allow Alaska to adopt the Multistate 
Nurse Licensure Compact (NLC): SB 67 – previously SB 179 in 2020. Last year, the Alaska Commission 
on Aging asked us to come present on the legislation – which we did on March 5, 2020. 


During that meeting in March, it sounded like the Commission was in support of the legislation. 
However, COVID-19 hit a week or so later and legislation session ended much earlier than expected. 
I’m reaching out to you today in hopes that the Commission would be willing to consider supporting 
the bill this year. The legislation is supported by the Department of Health and Social Services, and 
healthcare facilities and nurses across the State, including ASHNHA and AARP. 


I’m attaching the bill summary/section analysis for SB 67 along a one-page supporting document. 
These documents have not yet been published on the Alaska Legislature’s website, but they will be 
once the bill is scheduled for a hearing – which we expect to happen once SB 56 passes out of 
committee. If you would like additional documentation and/or if you’d like us to come speak with 
the Commission again this year, please let me know. If you’d like to see copies of the letters of 
support last year from Commissioner Crum, ASHNHA, AARP, or others – I can get those to you as 
well. 


Thank you! 
Sincerely, 


Glenn Hoskinson 
Special Assistant to the Commissioner 
Department of Commerce, Community & Economic Development 
State of Alaska 
Desk: (907) 465-6466 



mailto:lisa.morley@alaska.gov

mailto:glenn.hoskinson@alaska.gov

mailto:hss.acoa@alaska.gov

mailto:lisa.morley@alaska.gov

http://www.akleg.gov/basis/Bill/Detail/32?Root=sb%2067

mailto:lisa.morley@alaska.gov

mailto:hss.acoa@alaska.gov

mailto:glenn.hoskinson@alaska.gov

mailto:lisa.morley@alaska.gov










Senior and Disabilities Services 
Update 


ACoA Presentation
Feb 16, 2021


John Lee, MHA, FACHE
Director, Division of Senior and Disabilities Services
Department of Health and Social Services, 
State of Alaska







Mission Statement 


To promote health, well being and safety for 
individuals with disabilities, seniors and 


vulnerable adults by facilitating access to 
quality services and supports that foster 


independence, personal choice and dignity.











Cost of Institutional Care without Home and Community Based 
Waiver Services Options


SFY 2020 Costs by Funding Source and Average Cost per Person by Service Type (based on FY 2020 Final Auth Report and number of people for whom 
services were rendered during FY 2020)


4
Data Source: State of Alaska Automated Budget System, Final Auth 20 report, COGNOS


Program # served Avg cost per person Total costs
Home & Community Based Waivers
ALI Waiver 2,032 $35,846 $72,839,554
APDD Waiver 114 $89,183 $10,166,814
CCMC Waiver 201 $39,701 $7,980,029
IDD Waiver 2,009 $89,043 $178,887,081
ISW Waiver 387 $8,370 $3,239,221
TOTAL HCB Waivers 4,724 (60/40) Fed/State     $273,112,699 


Institutional Placements
Nursing Home 989 $156,956 (69/31) Fed/State     $155,229,609 
ICF/IID 14 $216,711 (56/44)Fed/State            $3,033,953 
TOTAL Institutional Placements 1,003 (69/31) Fed/State     $158,263,562 
TOTAL HCB Waivers and Institutional Placements (64/36) Fed/State         $431,376,262 


Institutional Placements if no HCB Waiver 
services existed – FY2020


Total cost based on average cost per person for NH 
and ICF/IID services


Nursing Home + ALI, APDD and CCMC Waiver 
service recipients 3,336 $523,605,639 


ICF/IID + IDD  and ISW Waiver service recipients 2,410 $522,273,371 
TOTAL if HCB Waivers did not exist and individuals eligible for Nursing home or ICF/IID care 
received services in Institutional Placements (ICF/IID is based on current out of state placement).  


(69/31) Fed/State
$1,045,879,010 







Waiver Renewals
Home and Community Based  Waiver 


Renewal Applications to the


Center for Medicare and Medicaid


Services: out for public comment until 


February 12, 2021


5







6


Electronic Visit Verification
Statewide Implementation on January 1, 2021







COVID-19 Response


National PHE and State DD 


Flexibilities
• Appendix K
• 1135
• Regulations Suspensions


Support for Partners
• Grants
• COVID Relief Funds
• Guidance
• Support


7


Vaccine Distribution
• Production
• Allocation
• Distribution
• Support and Guidance







Reorganization 
• Department of Health


• SDS
• DBH
• HCS
• DPA
• DPH


• Department of Family and 
Community Services


• API
• OCS
• DJJ
• Pioneer Homes 8







THANK YOU!


John Lee, MHA, FACHE
Director, Division of Senior and Disabilities Services
Department of Health and Social Services, 
State of Alaska





		Senior and Disabilities Services Update �

		�Mission Statement �

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Waiver Renewals

		Electronic Visit Verification�

		COVID-19 Response

		Reorganization 

		THANK YOU!










high-need healthcare settings in a cost effective manner that requires no State funding. Thank you for your 
Health and Social Services 


ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
P.O. Box  110693 


Juneau, AK 99811-0693 
M ain: 907.465.3250 


Fax : 907.465.1398 


December 29, 2020 


Subject: ACoA Public Comment Phase 1B Vaccination Distribution  


To: DHSS Vaccine Task Force and Alaska COVID-19 Vaccine Allocation Advisory Committee 


The Alaska Commission on Aging (ACoA) strongly advocates for the Alaska Vaccine Allocation 
Advisory Committee (AVAAC) to include individuals age 65-75  in schedule 1B of Alaska’s Covid-19 
vaccine distribution.  


According to the CDC website on Covid Risks for Older Adults, 8 out of 10 deaths reported in the 
US have been in adults age 65 and over.   Risk of death from Covid-19 increases with age and by 
providing individuals over 65 the opportunity to receive the vaccine during the 1B vaccination 
distribution, Alaska will be protecting its most vulnerable adults.    


Offering the vaccine to individuals 65 and over  will have a direct positive outcome for all 
Alaskans.  Benefits include reducing social isolation among family members, reducing risk of 
contracting the virus from direct service workers, reducing utilization of hospital resources for 
Covid-19 patients, and allowing our senior population the opportunity to begin participating in 
social and economic activities without fear of contracting the virus.   


The ACoA Senior Snapshot population estimates of Alaska seniors indicates the decision to include 
the 65-75 age group in the 1B vaccine distribution would affect approximately 61,919 Alaskans.   
Please consider including these Alaskan’s in the 1B vaccine distribution to protect Alaska’s seniors 
so they can begin to rejoin society.     


Sincerely,  


Gordon Glaser, Board Chair  Lisa Morley, Executive Director 
Alaska Commission on Aging Alaska Commission on Aging  





		Health and Social Services






Alaska Commission on Aging 


Tips for Meeting Attendees on Zoom 


Thank you for joining us today. We have a few requests to make our Zoom 


meeting as successful as possible. 


 When you join the Zoom meeting you will be placed on mute. If you want to speak, 
please wave your hand or write something in the comments section. Please wait for 
the Zoom host or meeting chair to take you off mute. 


 Be mindful of background noise 
When your microphone is not muted, avoid activities that could create additional 
noise, such as shuffling papers. 


 Position your camera properly 
If you are on a web camera, be sure it is in a stable position and focused at eye level, if 
possible. Doing so helps create a more direct sense of engagement with other 
participants.  


 If you are using a camera phone, be sure it is in a stable position and focused at eye 
level. If you will be moving the phone, please make sure your video is turned off 


 Avoid multi-tasking 
You'll retain the discussion better if you refrain from replying to emails or text 
messages during the meeting 


 





		Alaska Commission on Aging

		Tips for Meeting Attendees on Zoom

		Thank you for joining us today. We have a few requests to make our Zoom meeting as successful as possible.






AARP Priorities 
 
Home & Community Based Services  
Medicaid is the publicly funded health insurance program for low-income individuals, paid for through a 
combination of federal and state money. One Medicaid service option Alaska provides is “home and 
community-based services” (HCBS). These services, along with supportive case management, assist elders in 
avoiding or delaying institutional care, and remaining as independent as possible in their homes and 
communities.  
 


Waivers support direct daily living services to elders including care coordination, help with activities of daily 


living such as showering and dressing, adult day services, respite, transportation, safety related home 


modifications, assistance with shopping and preparing meals, specialized medical equipment and nursing 


services.  


Waivers also support the 84,000 unpaid family caregivers in keeping elders at home instead of placing them 


in a costly long-term care facility. 


There are only 20 nursing homes in Alaska, which cannot accommodate our vast geography or growing senior 


population. 


Almost half of Medicaid long-term care spending in Alaska goes to home and community based supports, one 


of the most cost-effective ways to deliver critical services to older adults by preventing costly institutional 


care.  


• Average annual Medicaid Waiver cost per senior: $35,826  


• Average annual Medicaid nursing home cost per senior: $ 156,956 
 


Permanent Expansion of Telehealth Coverage 


Medicaid Telehealth Coverage has been temporarily expanded during COVID-19 federal emergency 


declarations, including additional/increased provider categories, covered services, and delivery modalities. 


These flexibilities should be maintained and built on to provide ongoing expanded access to care for 


Alaskans including: 


• Provider reimbursement parity with in-person visits 


• Unrestricted patient and provider location 


• Allowance of audio-only telehealth services 


• Allowing providers to render telehealth services from their home without reporting their home address 
on claims 


• Allowing telehealth for services such as physician visits in skilled nursing facilities; hospital initial, 
subsequent, observation, and discharge evaluations; emergency department and critical care services 


• Expanded telehealth for behavioral health providers 


• Expanded coverage to include telephone and online digital check-ins 


• Allowance of telehealth for face-to-face encounters for case management services 







 


AARP Priorities 
 
Aging Safety Net 
While most Alaskan elders are self-supporting and independent, some need financial assistance to remain 
living independently in their homes. Nearly 7% of Alaskan elders fall below the federal poverty line, which is 
where senior safety net programs come in. 
 
Maintain Senior & Disability Services Grant Funding 
State Division of Senior and Disabilities Services offers financial assistance to low-income Alaskans 60-plus who 
are ineligible for Medicaid waivers financial assistance to provide meals, transportation, light housekeeping, 
chore, health promotion, adult day programs, and more. Financial assistance is delivered through senior 
centers and other non-profits and funded through a combination of Federal Older Americans’ Act dollars 
matched with state and local funds.  Average cost per senior: $484 
 
Maintain Public Assistance Programs for Low-income Elders 


• Senior Benefits Program pays cash benefits to Alaskan seniors who are age 65 or older and have low to 
moderate income. Payment levels are tied to the Alaska Federal Poverty Guidelines. Cash payments 
are $76, $175, or $250 each month depending on income. 


• SNAP Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (formerly Food Stamp Program), provides food 
benefits to low-income households. Eligible applicants must pass income and assets tests. The gross 
monthly income test is based on 130% of the current Alaska poverty standard. Average senior 
monthly payments: $250-350 


• Adult Public Assistance is a need-based supplement to Social Security, so recipients must be 
either certified as disabled by the Social Security Administration or be age 65 and older. Average 
senior monthly payments: $236 


• Low Income Heating and Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) is a federally funded program that 
provides heating assistance to households below 151% Federal Poverty Level. 


  







AARP Priorities  
 
Multistate Nursing Licensure Compact HB14, SB67 
Single-state licensure model limits mobility of nurses, workforce stability, and access to care for patients. 
Interstate health professional compacts play an important role in workforce stability and increasing patient 
access to quality healthcare while reducing regulatory burdens that prevent health professionals from 
providing care in multiple states. AARP Alaska strongly supports participation in the Nurse Licensure Compact 
to help improve health care access for older Alaskans. Alaska should join the thirty-four states have already 
adopted the multistate compact. 


 
• Over 90% of Alaska nurses surveyed support joining the Compact (Survey of Alaska Licensed Nurses’ View on 


the Nurse Licensure Compact, National Council of State Boards of Nursing Dec 2019) 


• There is a skilled nursing shortage nationwide which has been exacerbated by the pandemic. 
Healthcare workforce shortages are even worse in Alaska. 


• Nurse is the #1 posted help-wanted position in Alaska. 


• Alaska has a long history of benefiting from traveling nurse programs to supplement our workforce. 
The compact could entice nurses to remain in Alaska permanently. 


• All nurses practicing under a multistate license must meet a minimum set of licensure requirements, 
including a fingerprint federal criminal background check. These requirements are based on the 
highest regulatory standards for licensed health care professionals. 


 


Exempting Long-Term Care Facilities from Immunity HB4 
Residents of nursing homes and assisted living homes live in long-term care facilities, as they are unable to live 
independently and need assistance from staff. They are some of the most vulnerable adults in Alaska and 
deserve to be protected. 
  
Under pandemic restrictions, in-person visits from family members and Long Term Care Ombudsmen has been 


restricted or severely limited. In-person visits from licensing officials has also been severely restricted. This 


leaves these vulnerable adults without any independent oversite of care and safety during these difficult 


times. Most residents of long term care facilities are unable to advocate for themselves and now they have 


limited access to people who can watch out for their health and safety. The COVID-19 pandemic has caused 


staffing shortages, infection control issues, and outbreaks in facilities. Some residents of these long-term care 


facilities have died because of COVID-19. 


  
Due to their responsibility to provide care to Alaska’s most vulnerable adult, long-term care facilities should be 


exempted from any COVID-19 business and professional immunity. Alaska should not strip away the rights and 


protections of residents. Nursing homes and assisted living homes should to be held responsible for 


providing the level of quality care that is required of them, and for which they are being compensated.  
 



https://www.ncsbn.org/Federal_Trade_Commission_Policy_Perspectives_Options_to_Enhace_Occupational_License_Portability.pdf






 


1 
 


 
Alaska Commission on Aging - 2021 Legislative Priorities   


Mission: To ensure the dignity and independence of all older Alaskans, and to assist them to 
lead useful and meaningful lives through planning, advocacy, education and interagency 


cooperation.                                                                                        
(1) Support funding for senior grant services 


  
Senior grant services are administered by the Division of Senior and Disabilities Services and provide 
critical supports for older Alaskan’s 60 and over throughout the state.   These programs provide the 
framework for a variety of activities that improve the lives of seniors.  Grant funds provide meals, 
transportation, home-maker, chore, health promotion, adult day programs, and a multitude of health 
and socialization opportunities that allow individuals to remain in their homes and connected to their 
communities.   In addition to direct services to seniors, these grants fund Alaska’s Aging and Disability 
Resource Centers that provide information, referral and assistance with accessing senior services by 
community.  


Why are these services important? 


• Low-cost home and community-based services support seniors to remain healthy and independent 
and help prevent an older person from needing more intensive and more costly care.   Providing meals, 
transportation, assistance with errands, access to medicine, socialization, and other low-cost services 
provides the assistance seniors need to keep living independently.   These services are delivered by 
senior centers and local non-profits and have been critical during the pandemic to reduce food 
insecurity, prevent social isolation, and provide healthy activities to home-bound seniors.    Federal 
Older Americans’ Act funds are matched with state and local funds is an investment in the health and 
safety of seniors statewide.   


FY2020 Senior Grant funds (Federal and State): $14,468.274 
Number of seniors served: 29,873 
Average cost per senior: $484 
 
 
Supporting Caregivers Makes Sense 


• There are an estimated 12,500 Individuals who experience Alzheimer’s Disease and related dementias 
(ADRD) living in our state today.   Individuals with dementia often do not meet the physical level of need 
required to qualify for Medicaid Waiver services and rely on senior grant funded services such as adult 
day, respite, and other caregiver support to remain safe and give caregivers a break so they can 
continue to care for them at home.  With support, caregivers are able to extend the amount of time 
they can care for their loved ones.  


 







 


2 
 


 
 


(2) Support Medicaid Optional Services Medicaid Waiver and Community First Choice 
Program.  


Federally, Medicaid allows older adults 65 + who qualify for nursing home care, to receive “home and 
community-based services” in their own homes or an assisted living home. These services and supports 
are often referred to as “Medicaid Waivers,” and are an alternative to Nursing Home care.  These in-
home services help with daily living tasks older Alaskans who experience dementia and other medical 
needs rely on to remain independent.  Alaska has the fastest growing senior population in the nation, 
and without Home and Community based services, Alaska’s nursing home costs would be monumental.    
 


In FY2020, 2032 of Alaskan’s received home and community-based services through the Medicaid 
Waiver at an average cost of $35,826.   Alternatively, if Waiver services were unavailable, care would be 
provided in a nursing home at a cost of $156,956 per individual.   Medicaid Waiver services save the 
state money and should be maintained.    


 Medicaid Waiver Cost per individual: $35,826 


Nursing Home Cost per individual: $ 156,956 


 
 


(3) Support capital funding for AHFC’s Senior Citizen Housing Development Fund.  
 


Senior Citizens Housing Development Fund (SCHDF) - Funding in the amount of $1.75 million GF remains 
intact in the budget. From 2001 to 2020, the SCHDF, when used with other AHFC financing tools, has 
resulted in an average of 66 new senior housing units constructed annually, with 96 new units added in 
FY2021 alone, for a total production of 1,616 new senior housing units statewide from FY2001 to 
FY2021. In addition, the Senior Citizens Housing Development Fund provided funding for the Senior 
Access Program of which 33 seniors (age 55+) utilized this program in FY2019. The Senior Citizen 
Housing Development Fund is an important grant program to address the need for safe, quality, and 
affordable housing for seniors statewide.  


 
(4) Support Public Assistance Programs: Senior Benefits, SNAP, Heating Assistance 


 
In FY2020 Alaska’s senior population 60+ was 142,099.  Less than 10% of the senior population receives 
one or more of these senior benefits which include cash assistance, food assistance, or heating 
assistance. It is critical to maintain programs to support these low-income seniors in rural and urban 
settings who do not have any other resources.  Without these safety-net programs, seniors must often 
choose between housing, food, medications or heating their homes.   The Alaska Commission on Aging 
supports maintaining the Senior Benefits, SNAP (food assistance), and Heating Assistance programs 
administered by the Division of Public Assistance.  












Alaska Commission on Aging Roster 
FY2021 


 2.9.2021 
Gordon Glaser, Public Member, Chair 
1029 Potlatch Circle 
Anchorage, AK 99503 
Phone: (907) 276-3416 / (907) 240-0177 (cell) 
Email: mensch@acsalaska.net 
Term Expires: 9/1/2021 


 
Bob Sivertsen, Public Member, Vice Chair 
3817 Alaska Ave. 
Ketchikan, AK 99901 
Phone: (907) 225-3691 
Email: rwsivertsen@gmail.com 
Term Expires: 10/1/2023 


 
Paula Pawlowski, Public Member 
3300 Balchen Drive 
Anchorage, AK 99517 
Phone: (907) 245-1301 
Email: pawfamak@gmail.com 
Term Expires: 9/1/2023 


 
Nona Safra, Senior Services Provider 
4048 Bartlett St. #5 
Homer, AK 99603 
Phone: 299-1908 
Email: nonasaf@aol.com 
Term Expires: 9/1/2021 


 
Michael Coons, Public Member 
5200 North Dorothy Drive 
Palmer, AK 99645 
Phone: (907) 355-2364 
Email: mcoons@mtaonline.net 
Term Expires: 9/1/2024 


 
Bob Pawlowski, Pioneer Home Advisory Board Chair 
3300 Balchen Drive 
Anchorage, AK 99517 
Phone:  (907) 301-2464 
Email: Cptbob@gci.net 
Term: Serves on ACoA Board in the designated seat for 
the Pioneer Home Advisory Board Chair 


Cheryl La Follette, Public Member 
1420 Moore St. Apartment 7 
Fairbanks, AK 99701 
Phone: (907) 378-2191 
Email: Chelo52336@outlook.com 
Term Expires: 9/1/2024 


Rosemary Hagevig, Public Member 
P.O. Box 240423 
Juneau, AK 99824-0423 
Phone: (907) 209-5841 (cell) / 364-2154 (Home) 
Email: rosemaryhagevig@gmail.com 
Term Expires: 10/1/2024 


 
Pam Samash, Public Member 
HC 66 Box 29715 
Nenana, AK 99760 
Phone: (907) 322-2201 
Email: Christloveheals123@gmail.com 
Term Expires: 9/1/2024 


 
 


John Lee, Division of Senior & Disabilities Services 
1835 Bragaw Street 
Anchorage, AK 99508 
Phone: (907) 269-2083 
Email: john.lee2@alaska.gov 


 
Sandra Moller, Department of Community & Regional 
Affairs, Designated Seat 
Division Director 
550 W. 7th Avenue, Suite 1640 
Anchorage, Alaska 99501-1640 
Phone: (907) 269-4569 
Email: sandra.moller@alaska.gov 


 
 


Alaska Commission on Aging Office 
Department of Health and Social 
Services 240 Main Street, Suite 100 
P.O. Box 110693 Juneau, AK 99811-0693 
www.alaskaaging.org 
907-465-3250 (Phone) 


 
Lisa Morley, Executive Director 
(907) 465-4879 / (907) 500-2337 (cell) 
Email: Lisa.morley@alaska.gov 


 
Lesley Thompson, Planner 
(907) 465-4793 / (907) 957-0892 (cell) 
Email: lesley.thompson@alaska.gov 


 
Michelle Rogers, Rural Outreach Program Coordinator 
(907) 465-3250 / (907) (957-1574) 
Email: Michelle.Rogers@alaska.gov 


 



mailto:mensch@acsalaska.net

mailto:rwsivertsen@gmail.com

mailto:pawfamak@gmail.com

mailto:nonasaf@aol.com

mailto:mcoons@mtaonline.net

mailto:Cptbob@gci.net

mailto:Chelo52336@outlook.com

mailto:rosemaryhagevig@gmail.com

mailto:Christloveheals123@gmail.com

mailto:john.lee2@alaska.gov

mailto:sandra.moller@alaska.gov

http://www.alaskaaging.org/

mailto:Lisa.morley@alaska.gov

mailto:lesley.thompson@alaska.gov

mailto:Michelle.Rogers@alaska.gov






Public Advocacy
Teri Tibbett, Advocacy Coordinator
advocacy.coordinator@mhtrust.org


907-465-4765


11.22.21



mailto:advocacy.coordinator@mhtrust.org





21.22.21


Trust Beneficiaries 
are people with:


 Mental Illness
 Substance Use Disorders
 Intellectual/Developmental 


Disabilities
 Alzheimer’s 


disease/Dementia
 Traumatic Brain InjuriesPartner Advisory Boards:







WHAT IS ADVOCACY?
Advocacy is the act of influencing people’s lives. 


It can be personal advocacy, such as helping 
someone fill out an application or navigate a 
complicated system.


It can be public advocacy, such as speaking out 
at a public meeting, sending an email, meeting 
with a policymaker, or inviting others to join 
with you to advocate for something you want.


31.22.21







Advocacy vs. Lobbying


Advocacy is speaking out and for support 
about an issue. For example, “Please support 
community-based services for people with 
disabilities.” 


Lobbying is a direct communication with a 
policymaker or staff that attempts to influence a 
specific policy, funding proposal, or piece of 
legislation. For example, “Please support SB 102.”


41.22.21







 Citizens may advocate, educate, and give their 
opinions to policymakers, but must say they are 
representing themselves, and do it on their own time.


 People who work for non-profit organizations may 
advocate and lobby, but there are legal limits that 
need to be understood to remain in compliance.


 More than 10-hours in a month of direct contact with 
policymakers or staff requires registering as a 
lobbyist—for both citizens and professionals.


 State workers may NEVER advocate or lobby during 
state work hours or on state equipment.


1.22.21 5







THE PUBLIC PROCESS


Send emails and letters


Meet with a policymaker


Testify at public meetings


Attend public events


Our system is built on the rights of citizens to engage in 
decision-making on topics that affect their lives. We do 
this through communicating with policymakers:


61.22.21







Who are the POLICYMAKERS?
• State Legislators (Senators and Representatives)


• Borough Assembly Members
• City Council Members
• Village Council Members
• Native Corporation Board Members
• School Board Members


71.22.21







CITIZENS have the right to communicate their opinion 
and make recommendations for what believe or want. 


POLICYMAKERS are elected 
to serve CITIZENS.


81.22.21







It is the role of POLICYMAKERS to work for the 
citizens of their community, and it is the role of 


CITIZENS to communicate what they need!


91.22.21







Telling Your Story 
to Policymakers


1.22.21 10







1.22.21 11


Senator John Coghill meets with constituents in 
his Fairbanks legislative office.


The Value of Your 
Personal Story


 Policymakers hear lots of 
opinions from lobbyists, 
business owners, and 
agency professionals. 


 Personal stories get their attention because they are 
unique and represent real people’s lives.


 Personal stories help paint a picture of issues and 
experiences the policymaker may not know about.







1.22.21 12


 Policymakers want to know the perspectives and 
opinions of their constituents.


 People who live in a policymaker’s district have the 
power to vote, and it is in the policymaker’s best 
interest to listen to their constituents.







Personal stories can be…


… Your own story as a person with lived experience.


… Your experience as a family member or caregiver 
of a person with lived experience.


… The experience of a person you know or work with 
(with their permission).


… A composite of people you know or work with.


… A hypothetical story based on real experiences.


1.22.21 13







Sharing 
Your Story


1. Introduce yourself, where you live, who you are 
representing, your topic.


2. Tell your personal story, with challenges and 
successes, and use personal examples.


3. Make your “ask.” Give the policymaker an idea of 
what they can do to fix the problem.


Keep it between 2-3 minutes!
1.22.21 14







1.22.21 15


Telling Your Story in 
3-minutes or less


Prepare in advance. Write your 
story on the “Story Practice 
Sheet” or separate document. 
Follow the guidelines. 


Presenting it to a policymaker. 
Once written, you can put it into 
an email, letter, or read it aloud 
for in meetings with policy-
makers or public testimony. 


Plan on being nervous.Reading 
it aloud helps you stay on track 
and free from distractions.







1.22.21 16


 Your personal story is yours alone. You are the expert of your 
experiences and observations. No one can argue with that. 
Have confidence in that.


 However, be aware of your limits and how much you are 
comfortable sharing publicly. Public meetings are recorded 
and your comments will be in a permanent record.


Have Confidence







1.22.21 17


 Sign up ahead of time, there is usually a list. Wait until 
your name is called. If you call on the phone, give your 
name to the moderator and wait your turn.


 Know how much time 
you have to speak. Usually 
2-3 minutes. Stick to the 
time limit. If you go over, 
it can irritate committee 
members and turn them 
against your cause.


Speaking at a Public Meeting







 Introduce 
yourself, tell your 
story, make your 
ask. Keep it short 
and sweet.


181.22.21


 Understand the Chair is the “gatekeeper” of 
the meeting. All actions go through him or her. 
Remember to ‘speak through the chair.’







• Present your opinion in a respectful manner. 
Don’t raise your voice, accuse, yell, or blame. If 
you do, you can turn people against your cause.


• If you are respectful, it is more likely you will be 
treated with respect.


191.22.21







1.22.21 20


Look through the 
“How to Follow the 
State Legislature 
Online” document for 
how to track legislation, 
learn about legislators, 
watch live meetings or 
recordings of past 
meetings, read minutes, 
or set up your own bill 
tracking system.







1.22.21 21


Look through the 
“Advocacy from 
Home” document 
for ideas on how 
you can get 
involved with the 
legislative process 
and get your voice 
to policymakers.







Join Our Advocacy Network
Includes:


• Advocacy Alerts (opportunities to act)


• Talking points and education about issues


• Legislative bill tracking spreadsheet


• Weekly teleconferences during Legislative session


GO TO THE TRUST’S WEBSITE:
www.alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/jointadvocacy


221.22.21



http://www.alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/jointadvocacy





Thank You!


Contact Advocacy Coordinator, 907-465-4765, advocacy.coordinator@mhtrust.org
For more information, go to: www.alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/jointadvocacy


231.22.21



mailto:advocacy.coordinator@mhtrust.org

http://www.alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/jointadvocacy



		Public Advocacy

		Slide Number 2

		WHAT IS ADVOCACY?

		Advocacy vs. Lobbying

		Slide Number 5

		THE PUBLIC PROCESS

		Who are the POLICYMAKERS?

		Slide Number 8

		It is the role of POLICYMAKERS to work for the citizens of their community, and it is the role of CITIZENS to communicate what they need!

		Telling Your Story �to Policymakers

		The Value of Your Personal Story

		Slide Number 12

		Personal stories can be…

		Sharing �Your Story

		Slide Number 15

		Slide Number 16

		Slide Number 17

		Slide Number 18

		Slide Number 19

		Slide Number 20

		Slide Number 21

		Join Our Advocacy Network

		Thank You!










Aging in Alaska







Agenda
• Alaska’s Growing Senior Population and Impact 


AARP


• Older Americans Act, State Plan for Senior Services, Aging & 
Disability Resource Centers – Alaska Commission on Aging


• Alaska’s Growing Alzheimers Population and the new Call to Action 
Plan  Alzheimers Association & Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska 


• Senior Care Providers and the Continuum of Care 
AGENet


• Q&A







Alaska’s Growing Senior Population


• Alaska 65+ grew by 69% between 2008-2018*


• Fastest growing senior population in the country


• Nationally the senior population grew by 35% in 
the same period


• Why?


*Administration for Community Living’s Profile of Older Americans
https://acl.gov/aging-and-disability-in-america/data-and-
research/profile-older-americans



https://acl.gov/aging-and-disability-in-america/data-and-research/profile-older-americans





Alaska’s Growing Senior Population


• Two-thirds (68%) of 
Alaska residents age 45+ 
are currently living in 
Alaska full-time during 
retirement or are 
planning to do so in the 
future.*


*AARP AK Vital Voices Survey 2020 


65%


22%


5%


3%
6%


Plans to Live in Alaska During Retirement


Full-time Part-time Not at all Already am Don't know/ refused







5


Economic Impact


https://www.aarp.org/content/dam/aarp/
research/surveys_statistics/econ/2020/lo
ngevity-economy-outlook-
alaska.doi.10.26419-2Fint.00044.002.pdf







6


Other Contributions 


Alaska Voter Turnout By Age 


Age Bracket       2018 Election       2016 Election
18-24 30% 45%
25-34 35% 47%
35-44 46% 57%
44-54 54% 65%


55-59 61% 71%


60-64 65% 73%


65-74 68% 75%


75 and over 65% 70%


https://www.aarp.org/research/topics/life/info-2019/volunteer-attitudes-behaviors-lifespan.html



https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.aarp.org%2Fresearch%2Ftopics%2Flife%2Finfo-2019%2Fvolunteer-attitudes-behaviors-lifespan.html&data=04%7C01%7Cmstoneking%40aarp.org%7C5dfbecdd354d4d4f7c5c08d8c3b99bd4%7Ca395e38b4b754e4493499a37de460a33%7C0%7C0%7C637474549542435582%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=64FNJasVHPVZPMGJKve0DsJClKxC008yxoREhKd8gLw%3D&reserved=0





Welcome to the Alaska Commission on Aging!


Mission: 


• Ensure the dignity and independence of all older Alaskans, and to assist them to 
lead useful and meaningful lives through planning, advocacy, education, and 
interagency cooperation.


Structure:


• 11 volunteer board members appointed by the Governor elected to serve four-year 
terms. One representative from the Pioneers Advisory Homes, one representative 
from the Department of Health and Social Services, and one representative from 
the Department of Commerce and Economic Development.







What we do: 
• Advocate for the needs and concerns of older Alaskans to the 


Governor, the Legislature, the Administration, Alaska’s Congressional 


delegation, and the public.


• Advise the Governor, the Legislature, the Administration, the 


Congressional delegation and the public on current and potential 


programs and services for older Alaskans and their caregivers.


• Prepare a comprehensive four-year state plan for senior services in 


accordance with the Older Americans Act and implements the Plan 


in collaboration with agency partners to improve services for older 


Alaskans and reduce duplication of effort.


http://dhss.alaska.gov/acoa/Pages/stateplan.aspx



http://dhss.alaska.gov/acoa/Pages/stateplan.aspx





What we do: 


• Provide recommendations to the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority (AMHTA) for the integrated 


comprehensive mental health plan and identifies issues, proposes projects and submits budget 


recommendations that use funding for services provided to older Alaskans with Alzheimer’s disease 


and related dementias and other behavioral health conditions.


• Gather, analyze and report data about programs and services impacting the health, safety and 


quality of life for older Alaskans.


• Survey Alaska seniors and analyzes their responses to identify priority issues, needs and concerns.


• Review and provides comment on proposed regulations relating to programs and services affecting 


older Alaskans.


• Promote public awareness of aging issues and trends and provides information to the public and 


policy makers on senior issues including health, financial security, and housing.







Partners: 
• Administration for Community Living 
• AARP
• AMAC
• AGENET
• Department of Health and Social Services
• Division of Senior and Disabilities Services
• Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority
• Alaska Mental Health Board
• Alaska Board on Alcohol and Drug Misuse
• State Independent Living Council
• Senior Service Providers
• Alaska Native Health Consortium
• Governors Council of Special Education and Developmental Disabilities







To Find Senior Services in your Community call the 


Aging and Disabilities Resource Centers


1-855-565-2017
http://dhss.alaska.gov/dsds/Pages/adrc/default.aspx



http://dhss.alaska.gov/dsds/Pages/adrc/default.aspx





Alzheimer’s Association
Alaska Dementia Statistics



















New – Alaska’s 10-year Map to Address 
Alzheimer’s Disease and Related Dementia


16


https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/A-Call-To-Action-Alzheimers-Disease-Related-Dementia-10-Year-Map.pdf



https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/A-Call-To-Action-Alzheimers-Disease-Related-Dementia-10-Year-Map.pdf





Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska


17


▪ Programs for anyone of any age concerned with memory 
loss or diagnosed with Alzheimer’s or a related dementia


▪ Programs for family caregivers who carry the greatest share 
of care.


▪ Programs for professionals


▪ Programs for the General Public
▪ Statewide coverage
▪ Four offices







Challenges Dementia Can Cause


18


May 
Create 


Challenges


Unfamiliar 
Surroundings Loud noises, 


environment or 
not enough 
stimulation


Physical 
Discomfort


Difficulty in 
Communicating


Difficulty with 
Tasks







State Supported Services Available


19


▪▪ Care Coordination In-Home Supports


▪ Case Management ▪ Chore


▪ Adult Day Programs ▪ Respite


Nutritional Supports ▪▪ Personal Care
▪▪ ADRD Minigrants (Trust) Home modifictions


▪ Transportation
▪▪ Caregiver Supports Medicaid ALI Waivers


▪ Family Caregiver Classes ▪ Must meet Level of 


▪ Professional Caregiver Care for nursing 


Instruction facility.


▪ Facilitated Peer Support ▪ Pioneer Homes


Groups
▪ Nursing Homes







AgeNet (Alaska Geriatric Exchange Network)


• AgeNet is the statewide leadership association of Alaska senior 
service providers which has been an advocate for Alaskans age 60 and 
older for more than 20 years.


• AgeNet works to assure the appropriate network of senior services is 
available in every Alaskan community for all seniors so they might live 
independently with honor and dignity.


• Seniors prefer to “age in place” in their own homes and traditional 
communities for as long as possible.


Marianne Mills, President







AgeNet members
Access Alaska Native Village of Unalakleet
Alaska Training Cooperative Mat-Su Senior Services


Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska Nenana Senior Center
Anchorage Senior Activity Center Ninilchik Senior Citizens
Arctic Access North Star Council on Aging
Center for Community Older Persons Action Group
Chugiak Senior Citizens Sandra Heffern
Denakkanaaga Senior Citizens of Kodiak
Denise Daniello (UAF) Serendipity Adult Day
Fairbanks Resource Agency Seward Senior Citizens
Frontier Community Services Soldotna Area Senior Citizens
Gordon Glaser (ACOA/ASAC) Southeast Alaska Independent Living
Homer Senior Citizens Southeast Senior Services/CCS
Independent Living Center Statewide Independent Living Council
Jim McCall Tanana Chiefs Conference
Kenai Senior Center Trinion Quality Care Services
LifeWorks Wasilla Area Seniors







Care in a Nursing Home (Skilled 
Nursing Facility)


HCB Care through the Alaskans 
Living Independently Waiver*


Home and Community-Based 
Grants at home with Family


$13,080 per month $2,987 per month $42 per month


$156,956 per year per senior $35,846 per year per person $509 per year


Consider other advantages of Home and Community-Based Care in addition to the vast cost savings:


• The older adult can remain with dignity in his/her own home and community;


• Alaskan family caregivers are given support to continue providing unpaid care;


• Meals, rides, adult day, care coordination, case management, respite, chore services safeguard elders from 


injury and deterioration which lead to premature costly institutionalization.


*HCB Waiver services for nursing home eligible seniors are paid by Medicaid (50% federal) dollars—”Waivers are Savers”. 


Nearly half of Alaskans who are age 85 and older suffer from dementia.  


How should the State of Alaska care for these persons who are unable to care for themselves?                          







Alaska’s Continuum of Care for Older Alaskans
Community-Based


Services


Home-Based Services
Intensive Home and Community-


Based Services
Services in a


Residential Care
Setting


Most Intensive Institutional Services


* Congregate Meals


* Public Transportation


* Information/Referral/
Personal Advocacy


* ADRD Education and Support


* Health Promotion 
Activities


* Senior Employment 
Services (MASST)


* Independent Living  
Apartments


* Senior Centers


* Senior Volunteers


* Legal Services


* Home Delivered Meals


* Assisted Transportation


* Shopping Assistance


* Home Repair


* Senior Companion 
Volunteers


*Homemaker/Chore


* Adult Day Services


* Counseling


* Family Caregiver   
Support


* In-Home Respite 
Care


* Home Health Care


* Hospice Care


* Personal Care


* Assisted Living 
Homes


* Pioneers’ Homes


* Acute Care
(aka Hospital)


* Nursing Home Care
(aka Skilled Nursing Facility)


* Residential Hospice Care


Long Term Care Ombudsman: Advocacy for Residents of


Long Term Care Facilities







State of Alaska Continuum of Care


24


Community Based


Facility Care


Home & Community Based Waivers


Institutional PlacementsGeneral Relief/ 
Temporary 


Assisted Living


$9,466
Avg


cost/person


Total
$5,101.9
# Served


539


State: 100%


Total
$17,238.5
# Served
33,874


Federal: 42%
State: 57%


MHTAAR: 1%


Grant 
Services


$509
Avg


cost/person


Total
$28,101.7


# Served
2,312


Federal: 50%
State: 50%


Personal 
Care Services


$12,155
Avg


cost/person


Nursing 
Home


$156,956
Avg


cost/person


Intermediate 
Care Facility for 
Intellectual & 


Developmental 
Disabilities


$216,710
Avg


cost/person


Total
$3,033.9


# Served
14


Federal: 50%
State: 50%


Total
$155,229.6


# Served
989


Federal: 50%
State: 50%


Alaskans Living 
Independently 


Waiver


$35,846
Avg


cost/person


Children w/ 
Complex 
Medical 


Conditions 
Waiver


$39,702
Avg


cost/person


Intellectual & 
Developmental 


Disabilities 
Waiver


$89,043
Avg


cost/person


Adults w/ 
Physical & 


Developmental 
Disabilities 


Waiver


$89,183
Avg


cost/person


Total
$72,839.6


# Served
2,032


Federal: 50%
State: 50%


Total
$7,980.0


# Served
201


Federal: 50%
State: 50%


Total
$178,887.1


# Served
2,009


Federal: 50%
State: 50%


Total
$10,166.8


# Served
114


Federal: 50%
State: 50%


Senior and Disabilities Services


SFY 2020 Costs by Funding Source and Average Cost per Person by Service Type


Costs by Funding Source Total # Served (Duplicated 
Counts Across some 
Service Types)


Grant Services Personal Care 
Services


Home & Community 
Based Waivers


Institutional
Placements


Total Costs


$31,613.8 $51,551.9 $ 273,112.7 $ 158,263.6 $514,541.9 50,495


http://dhss.alaska.gov/dsds/Documents/pca/Continuum_Care_FY2019.pdf
Data Source: State of Alaska Automated Budget System, Final Auth 20 report, Harmony and COGNOS
Note: SDS Medicaid programs that included federal funding received a 6.2% FMAP increase due to the COVID pandemic. This increase was effective 1/1/20 and is 
expected to remain in effect through 3/31/21.


Early 
Intervention/ 


Infant Learning 
Program


$2,703
Avg


cost/person


Total
$9,273.3
# Served


3,431


Federal: 20%
State: 80%


Grant Programs


Individualized 
Supports 
Waiver


$8,370
Avg


cost/person


Total
$3,239.2


# Served
387


Federal: 50%
State: 50%


Total
$21,769.2


# Served
932


Federal: 56%
State: 44%


Community 
First Choice


$23,357
Avg


cost/person


Total
$1,681.0


# Served
3,661


Federal: 50%
State: 50%


LTSS 
Targeted 


Case 
Management


$459
Avg


cost/person


Medicaid Program



http://dhss.alaska.gov/dsds/Documents/pca/Continuum_Care_FY2019.pdf





Questions & Contacts


• Marge Stoneking AARP Alaska Advocacy Director
mstoneking@aarp.org www.aarp.org


• Lisa Morely, Alaska Commission on Aging Executive Director 
lisa.morely@Alaska.gov
http://dhss.alaska.gov/acoa/Pages/default.aspx


• Elizabeth Bolling, Alzheimer’s Association Advocacy Director 
ebolling@alz.org www.alz.org


• Rhonda Scott, Alzheimer’s Volunteer Advocate 
RHONDASCOTTART@icloud.com


• Pam Kelley, Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska Executive Director 
pkelley@alzalaska.org www.alzalaska.org


• Marianne Mills, AGENet President Marianne.mills@ccsjuneau.org



mailto:mstoneking@aarp.org

http://www.aarp.org/

mailto:lisa.morely@Alaska.gov

http://dhss.alaska.gov/acoa/Pages/default.aspx

mailto:ebolling@alz.org

http://www.alz.org/

mailto:RHONDASCOTTART@icloud.com

mailto:pkelley@alzalaska.org

http://www.alzalaska.org/

mailto:Marianne.mills@ccsjuneau.org



		Structure Bookmarks

		Agenda

		Alaska’s Growing Senior Population

		Alaska’s Growing Senior Population

		Economic Impact

		Other Contributions 

		Welcome to the Alaska Commission on Aging!

		Alzheimer’s AssociationAlaska Dementia Statistics

		New –Alaska’s 10-year Map to Address Alzheimer’s Disease and Related Dementia

		New –Alaska’s 10-year Map to Address Alzheimer’s Disease and Related Dementia



		Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska

		Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska



		Challenges Dementia Can Cause

		Challenges Dementia Can Cause



		State Supported Services Available

		State Supported Services Available



		AgeNet(Alaska Geriatric Exchange Network)

		AgeNet members

		Alaska’s Continuum of Care for Older Alaskans

		State of Alaska Continuum of Care

		Questions & Contacts












ACoA Bylaws Committee 
January 21, 2021 


10:00am 
Zoom 


 
Roll Call:  
Present: Paula Pawlowski, Rosemary Hagevig, Mary Shields, Gordon Glaser, Cheryl La Follette 
Staff: Lisa Morley, Michelle Rogers 
 
Discussion of Bylaws: We moved to discuss Policies and Procedures first and carry forward bylaws 
discussion.  
 
Policies and Procedures:  
 During our Ethics orientation we became aware that all meetings of ACoA needed to be Public 
Noticed which meant that all committees also need to allow on their agendas a time for Public 
Comment. The following are recommendations from the Bylaw’s Committee: 
 
 
Section:  Public Comment 
Section 5 
The purpose for having public comment is to provide an opportunity for the public to present 
information and advise the Commission and/or its’ committees about problems and issues related to 
older Alaskans. This comment may be provided in-person, by teleconference, and/or videoconference. 
 
(a) The public comment period will not be considered a hearing and cannot be used for that purpose. 
Organizations are required to request a hearing in advance in writing and, when granted by the 
Commission, such hearings must be given public notice in accordance with the law. 
 
(b) Public comment will be limited to 3 minutes for personal and 5 minutes for organizations.  
Organizations may be represented by not more than three speakers whose combined comments may 
not exceed ten minutes. A waiver to the time limit may be granted by order of the Chairperson or by 
motion adopted by the Commission. 
 
We then realized that sometimes, such as now, there would be no past Chair serving on the ACoA board 
so changes to the designation of the Executive Board was changed to read as:  
 
The Executive Committee is comprised of the Chair, Vice Chair, immediate past Chair, and a committee 
chair as designated by the Chair.  If the immediate past Chair is no longer serving on the Commission, , a 
member shall be elected by the current Commission members to the Executive Committee. The 
Executive Director shall serve as an ex officio member of the Executive Committee; 
 
This change mirrors the bylaws, pg 5 Executive Committee 
 
The Bylaws committee will meet before our Spring Board Meeting.  
 
Respectively Submitted 
ACoA Bylaw’s Committee 
 








ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


1 


 
Tuesday, September 22, 2020 
 
Good Morning & Welcome!         
Call to order: Meeting called to order by Chair Gordon Glaser at 9:00 a.m. 


 
Roll Call: ACoA Commissioners present:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
ACoA Chair Gordon Glaser, ACoA Vice Chair Bob Sivertsen, Rosemary Hagevig, Paula Pawlowski, Cheryl 
La Follette, Mike Coons, Nona Safra and, Pam Samash and Sandra Moller. Absent John Lee.  
ACoA Staff Present: Lesley Thompson and Michelle Rogers 


 
ACTION: Motion to approve the draft meeting agenda was made by Rosemary Hagevig and seconded 
by Mike Coons. The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
ACTION: Adoption of Minutes of May 11, 2020 was made by Rosemary Hagevig and seconded by 
Paula Pawlowski. The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
Ethics Disclosures – Gordon reminded Commission members to sign and give the disclosures to Lesley. 
  
 “Safety Moment” and “Teleconference Etiquette:” Paula Pawlowski review both the safety moment and 
teleconference etiquette. 


 
Chair Report – Gordon Glaser 


 
Gordon talked about our relationship with SDS and a proposed teleconference in October regar. Talked 
about re-opening and vaccine.    Thanked Paula for training supplies.  We are also welcoming some new 
members aboard.  Our relationship with the Pioneer Home.  Rosemary and Bob both have a lot of 
background in the Pioneer home.   
 
Vice Chair Report – Bob Sivertsen 
 
Bob had to go to a different meeting. 
 
Executive Director and Rural Outreach Coordinator Report   
Lesley reported that it has been a very busy time for the commission.  We have hired two staff members.  
One was the Rural outreach coordinator, Michelle Rogers.  She started the end of August.  She will talk in 
just a minute.  We also hired a new MASST person through Rita Gray.   
 
Two Governor proclamations were signed.  One for Hiring Older Workers. He also signed one for fall 
prevention.   







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


2 


We have been having a lot of Alaska Mental Health Trust meetings.  We are still working on the data 
collection for the Comprehensive Mental Health Plan.  We are finding out what data sources are out 
there that can be used in the Plan.    
 
ACoA Committee & Representational Reports     


• Executive Committee: Gordon Glaser, Committee Chair  
• Legislative Advocacy Committee: Bob Sivertsen, Committee Chair   
• Governor’s Council on Disabilities & Special Education: Nona Safra, ACoA  
• Representative 


Update on telehealth.  It doesn’t work very well with veterans when testing for PTSD.   Have 
technology issues with rural and remote technology.  They don’t have enough bandwidth 
when it’s being used too much.  Many older Alaskans don’t have access to technology in 
homes.  When libraries were closed they didn’t have access to computers.  Need for further 
training to educate seniors.  Use emails and how to navigate platforms like zoom.  They 
don’t have access to smartphones or know how to use them to their full capabilities.  
Additional usage when complex problems can add hundreds of dollars to bill.  Billing system 
needs more flexibility.  Medicaid will pay for the medical visit but not for GCI and additional 
usage.  That would save money because people are not going to  


• Pioneer Home Advisory Board: Bob Pawlowski 
COVID-19 has had an impact in Fairbanks with 3 deaths. There are 2 vacant board seats.  
There is an active wait list of 258 at end of August.  Now down to 177.  Seeing strong interest 
on the list.   
 
Rosemary:  If there is an ad-hoc committee on veterans’ affairs.  What do we expect the 
committee to do on paper and what the hopeful outcomes might be. 
 
Discussion ensued about ad hoc committees and changing needs mean different 
committees.   Also how long do they last.  Bob noted they should last no longer than a year.  
Paula said they need to give public notice and a committee is not a committee until they 
follow the process – goals, outcomes, public notified.  


 
Update on the ADRD Roadmap 
Jordan Lewis 
 
Alaska has had one ADRD plan since 2014.  Nothing was revised since then. Updates will include focusing 
on strengths.  Community driven initiatives.  Drafting the plan now.  Work started early this summer.  
Build on what’s already working, as well.  Draft should be finalized by early December. Who is driver and 
how does this connect with the Alaska Commission on Aging?   
 
 
 
 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


3 


Transitions: Recruiting for a New ACoA Executive Director  
Gordon Glaser, Chair, Bob Sivertsen, Vice Chair  
 
Gordon talked about how they appreciate Lesley stepping in again as interim executive director.  
Executive committee will be screening committee for the search for a new executive director.  Mary 
Shields will serve on this committee.  Last time they did national search which was not very successful.  
Didn’t do a national search this time.  Will have position in either Juneau or Anchorage.  The commission 
will remain in Juneau but the ED will be based in either place.  There were 11 people qualified. 
 
Rosemary:  Serious concerns about Anchorage option.  So much of what is done is done in Juneau.  Feel 
very strongly about it.  Role with legislative process is at least 4 months out of the year.  So much of what 
is done with state plan is done here in Juneau.  If do end up hiring in Anchorage, if they do relocate to 
Juneau during legislative season, do we have the budget to do that? 
 
Bob:  Moving forward and good applicants 
 
Gordon:  if living in Anchorage they would have to go back and forth for Trust meetings.  Larger question 
is that Juneau is where the action is.   
 
Rosemary:  There is a vast difference between traveling for meetings and the more intense ongoing work 
that happens at a moment’s notice during the legislative process.  There are a number of state 
employees who spend at least a week here.  Do we have the money? 
 
Lesley:  We have nothing according to Hilary Porter.  It would be a real hardship to have someone come 
down here for extended and smaller periods of time.    
 
Mike:  The legislature meets a maximum of 120 days.  The rest of that year they’re at home.  We have a 
large amount of legislators in the Anchorage/Kenai/Matsu area.   They have a road system capability to 
meet with legislators.  That’s one of the positives.  At least an option.   
 
Bob Sivertsen:  The office is in Juneau and we have staff in Juneau.  It’s a conversation we’ll have to have 
with the applicant. It would be hard to have director and office split.  Even though the legislature isn’t in 
session, we do a lot of work with social services who are in both places. 
 
Rosemary:  Is there money in the budget to establish and maintain an office in Anchorage.   
 
Gordon:  SDS is moving to a new office building but there is no guarantee. 
 
Mike:  This would come out of governor’s administrative budget?  Would we coordinate with them for 
more funding? 
 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


4 


Gordon:  No.  We have our own funding.  Juneau is the capitol but they have to be working with the rest 
of the state.  If only people in Juneau can make it work, we have a problem.  We’ll need to change and be 
open to people throughout the state.  
 
We should have a final candidate by October and will put the person to the committee. 
 
Nona:   The fact we got 11 people to apply speaks to opening it up to more than Juneau.  Not everyone 
wants to move off road system and that was a stumbling block to getting more candidates. 
 
Paula:  Just to be clear, I will not be a part of the process.  I know three candidates and promoted one to 
apply.   
 
Moller:  Zoom has really changed things when it comes to having remote offices.  We’re 95% 
teleworking.  Have seen productivity increase.  State would like to increase/continue teleworking.   
 
Gordon:  We in effect will select a recommendation for the governor but it must be approved by the 
governor.   
 
Mike C.:  Poll AMAC did is that 8000 people would like to get vaccine.  That 9992 have concerns about the 
vaccine and will wait and 15,277 don’t want the vaccine at all. 
 
Facebook poll.  Some reasoned responses. Some nasty responses.  Most responses against the vaccine.  
People most impacted are 60+ with health complications.   They are the priority but it should be 
interesting that the group is going to say no to the vaccine.  Working with Dr. Zink on prioritizing the 
consensus and educating.  It’s going to take some work to convince people that it’s safe and effective.  
Main concern is that it’s happening so fast.  We’re used to FDA taking 5-7 years to approve things.  Now 
it’s being done rapidly and there are fears about the safety of it.  Supportive of the science going on with 
it but it should be an interesting situation overall.  Would like to see at least one commissioner on the 
working group.   Would like to do something positive with our charge of 60+ people.  
 
Gordon:   The issue of vaccines is education and testing.  Many people are skeptical with good reason.  
There are strong feelings about it and would encourage people to join the group. 
 
Pamela replied that the most vulnerable to the vaccine are the most vulnerable to adverse effects.  
Speed of vaccine is concern.  Doesn’t think people should get the vaccine. 
 
COVID-19 VIRUS Update 
Dr. Zink talked about the amazing team at the state and the entire state of Alaska.  During COVID-19 it 
highlighted the whole medical person.  Promote health and well-being regardless of their underlying 
conditions.   
 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


5 


How do we think about testing, surveillance, rural planning?  There are a lot of planning aspects that go 
into responding.  Where are we?  Where are we going? 
 
It really depends on individual Alaskan choices.  This virus does not dictate us.  It only lives if we spread it 
from one person to another.  Italy and New York showed similar mortality to 1918 virus.  It was mostly 
older men.   The test is a very useful tool. It’s challenging to diagnose it without it.  We are the second 
most tested state in the nation.  We have an average number of cases per 100,000.  We are in top tier for 
% tested.  125 cases per 100,000.  SD and the Midwest is really taking off.  Testing is the reason why we 
have the lowest number of deaths and the lowest number of deaths per capita.  Getting tested early and 
often is important.  It’s because of a tremendous amount of partnerships across the state keeping the 
count down in prevention.    
 
Indoors rather than outdoors is good.  People have COVID-19 fatigue.  People need to get together for 
medical services.  Winter is coming campaign.  People will be inside more often.  We need to winterize.  
Get flu shot.  More people are getting flu shot.  Pharmacies are running out of senior flu shot.  Make plan 
for physical and mental health.  Vitamin D levels are important.  Less D is a risk factor.  Modify weight 
and be physically active.  Stay mentally engaged.  Isolation is taking a toll on mental health.  Long term 
care facilities are allowing safe visitation.   
 
How do we drive our numbers down?  Avoid Congregate settings, close contact, closed settings and we 
need good air ventilation.    
 
Wear mask.  Wash hands.  Wash dishes.   
 
Get ready for vaccine.  There is a lot coming out in short period of time.  People are asking great 
questions.  How can we serve our community?  Look out for our neighbors.  We need to check on each 
other.   
 
Pamela Samash:   Can you consider getting the gyms and pools opened back up so we can get elderly 
people swimming again? 
 
A problem she has with a situation in Kirkland- one senior with Covid-19 was dying and they allowed her 
daughter to visit.  When she saw her daughter, she healed instantly.  If masks are effective, whey can’t 
relatives visit if essential workers can. 
 
Dr. Zink:  State has not closed any pools.  Many pools are open.  It’s they are nervous about opening and 
unsure about opening.  State trying to help them open safely.   Pools are easy place to mitigate because 
of the chlorine.  Chlorine kills virus.   
 
There are guidelines with long term care facilities.  Unfortunately, people have visited and not been 
respectful of the rules and spread the virus.   
 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


6 


Visitation is important. 
 
Mike:   There is a two pronged attack on virus.  The second one isn’t talked about.  Advent of 
therapeutics.  Would you talk about therapeutics vs. fears of vaccine? 
 
Zink:   Healthcare echo:  Mortality rate in ICU has plummeted.   It used to be 10-15 days now it’s 4.  
Effective treatments are Remdesevir,  Dexamthazone, Convalescent plasma.  Pronating makes a huge 
difference.  Used to intubate right away.  Now hold off on intubating and people do better.  High nasal 
canula and pronation.  Clotting is associated with the disease now so people are treated with anti-
clotting medication.  Patients are also being treated with antibodies made in lab.  Instead of vaccine 
they’re given antibodies.  HIV+ people can take anti-virals early on.  Treatment depends a lot on 
underlying risk factors.   
 
Seeing science and technology progress is amazing.  There is a lot of progress being made. 
 
Rosemary:   Found N95 masks at Lowe’s in Alaska.   Sitting on CBJ task force to set up independent PCR 
testing to assist in moving people back towards new normal.  Use aggressive testing model to get kids 
back into school.  Getting visitor industry back into place.  Very hopeful for some of the outcomes.  
Hoping to get a test faster than the current 2.5 days. 
 
Jim McCall:   Would love to have you speak sometime at Mat Su council on aging.  As a resident of the 
valley we see less mask wearing. 
 
Zink:   A lot of it has to do with luck.  Part of it has to do with space.  How are people spaced out in every 
day interactions?   Used to go to Anchorage for interactions, movies and restaurants.   There’s less of 
those in the valley.  People have been more outside on ATVs and bikes.  Modeling and numbers work in 
homogeneous populations where everyone is close.  It falls apart in places like Alaska.  There’s a lot of 
fluctuations and variations.  The exception is Anchorage because they have more numbers and more 
people close together.  Masks are a useful tool.  Alaskans aren’t magically protected from the virus.  We 
need to keep the spread down.   
 
Bob P wanted to know if there is a partnership with Indian health? 
 
Zink:   50% of testing sites are within the Indian Health system.   The state lab is doing a lot.  The other 
big testing site is at ANMC.  They ran our tests when our broke down.  There have been steps that 
haven’t gone smoothly.  Being partnered with them is critically important.   
 
People are used to quick responses.  Prevention is as important as treatment.  FEMA doesn’t do 
prevention.  IHS is helping figure out prevention. 
 
 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


7 


Sandy Moller:   CARES act – department of commerce- working on improving sanitation in smaller 
villages. 
 
At risk population:  When it first came out we had over 60 with previous conditions.  Now it’s a growing 
number of 20-30 population.   Identifying what a high-risk person is for Covid-19? 
 
Zink:   70-80% of us have underlying health conditions.  UHC – Covid-19 is like a lightning strike.  If there’s 
UHC it’s more likely to burn.  A large exposure will cause something to burn that might not.  Covid-19 
affects all the organ systems.    
 
Until we have widespread easy testing and a widespread vaccine, we’ll have to be dealing with this. 
 
Mike asked about Flu vaccine?   
 
Dr. Zink:  Over 65 go for the high dose.  The older you get, the harder it is to build an immune response.  
The older we get the more we can overreact to something.  Got to give the body and extra dose to jump 
it.  Get it before the end of October.    
 
Pam:  Regarding the voluntary Covid-19 vaccine?  People can still go to school and travel without it?   
 
Zink:  The governor is clear that he is not mandating the vaccine.  Private industries can make their own 
decisions about what to mandate.   
 
Nona:   Brain injury due to Covid-19? 
 
People having cognitive decline in processing.  Even in those not hospitalized.  Younger having strokes.  
Can cause encephalitis.  30% are having neuro.  Younger it’s effecting the heart.   
 
People within underlying cognitive decline are at high risk. 
 
Lunch 
 
Department of Health and Social Services 
Commissioner Adam Crum (invited or designee)  
John Lee, Division of Senior and Disabilities Services 


 
A Wall:  Early on after the declaration of the disaster.  Applied for the 1135 waiver.  That was granted.  
Put together appendix k application.  Regulatory control that would benefit Alaskans and providers.   
 
Conversation about what flexibilities the dept wants to keep permanent.  Our way of business, work, life 
has been heavily impacted.  A great deal of health care can be given via telehealth.  Do we want to retain 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


8 


those things permanently?  No decision made.  Seen impact of telehealth.  It would be a tremendous 
thing to keep those capabilities.   
 
John Lee:   SDS  we have three big groups of money.  Grant services.  Waiver Services.  Five waivers.  4 of 
them touch senior population.  Renewed every 5 years.  Upcoming next year.   
 
IDD Waiver 
ALI Waiver  
APDD Waiver 
CCMC Waiver 
Individualized supports waiver. 
 
Have several projects we’re going to incorporate into renewal applications.  Move CFC to waiver 
program.  Provides enhanced level of support through the enhanced work and care coordination. 
 
Streamlining NFLOC level of care determination to be more efficient.  They have a choice to be 
institutionalized or waiver. 
 
Streamline work for people with disabilities.   Allow flexibility.  Will be incorporated into waiver.  No 
increase cost.  
 
EVV is electronic visit verification.   Protect vulnerable populations from fraud and abuse.  It adds a lot of 
visibility to where and when the services are being performed.   Issues are the short timeline.  Only Ohio 
has certified system.  Supposed to be in place by January 1st.  TheraP has been contracted to do this.  
Trying to get an extension by a year.  Covid-19 created huge challenge.  A lot of these agencies have been 
impacted by loss of revenue stream due to loss of group services and other.   
 
Bob Sivertsen:  Can we spread out renewals? 
 
Answer:  Federal government sets timeline.  It’s easier for SDS to tackle the project all at once.   It’s more 
efficient and effective than staggering them.  Wording and terminology very similar among waivers. 
 
John:  On Covid-19.  Thank you for your advocacy and support during this period.  I look forward to the 
conference with the senior providers.   
 
Gordon:  Appreciate you and your staff.  Good partnership.   
 
Mike:  Lesson learned is – Senior centers are often a petri dish. His wife used to work at Palmer Senior 
Center and she was constantly sick.  We need to take what we’ve learned and incorporate it in future to 
avoid passing on colds and flus.   
 
John:  Yes, we need to keep people attending congregate setting safe and it will be incorporated.   







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


9 


 
Lesley:  Thank SDS for all the staff support for our commission. 
 
Heather Carpenter: Healthcare policy advisor for Commissioner Crums office.  Lesley does a really good 
job representing you and your commission. 
 
Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority 
Mike Abbott, CEO  
 
Mike did an outstanding job with an Introduction to AMHTA    
 
Housing and community based services – several millions of $ a year are dedicated to grants in this area.  
Fund the work of state agencies that are working in this field as well.  Commission continues to express 
interest in HCBS program.  Look to commission for guidance. 
 
Once of most common requests we were is need for both high skilled and low skilled staff.  It is a 
constant challenge finding both direct support and clinical support.   Focusing on building up the DSP 
workforce.    
 
Primary mechanism on making an impact is through grant 25 million in grants.  All manner of different 
types of agencies.   
 
Both agencies providing services, state agencies and state and local government and individuals.   Can 
make funding decisions at virtually any time during the year.    
 
We repurposed 1.5 milllion dollars as it relates to Covid-19.  There were agencies and service providers 
around the state that were close to closing their operations.   Some were already prepared with 
telehealth but in other cases the agencies had to start it themselves.   We reallocated it and it’s all been 
expended to 75 individual grants to agencies supporting beneficiaries. Every agency that was around 6 
months ago is still around and providing the same or better services than before Covid-19. 
 
Our annual budget includes $25 million in grants. 
 
Pam Samash:  Can these grants go to funding Nenana senior center construction done to help air supply 
system to open it back up.   Improve mental health.    
 
Answer:  Potentially yes.  It has to be related to trust beneficiaries.  They provide services to Alzheimer’s 
and dementia.   
 
Lisa Morley via chat:  CARESAct can also help with that. 
 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


10 


Current budget:   Obligation we have to make recommendation for how state spends money.  The state 
has to explain in writing why they are not following our recommendations.  We just finished budgeting 
process for next fiscal year.  We are deploying $2 million more than in previous years.  Not increasing 
admin budget.  It will go out as grants to our partners. 
 
In addition to being a funder, we also advocate, plan, educate.   Educate around the stigma around older 
Alaskans and other trust beneficiaries experience around their conditions and limitations.  These are not 
limitations that should affect our ability to participate in our communities and to live full well-rounded 
lives.   
 
Discussion about funding, land sales and use.   
 
Will start up the trustee recruiting and evaluation next week.  Need someone from the commission. 
 
 
Alaska Housing Finance Corporation 
Jim McCall, Senior Housing Officer  
 
Jim talked about funding, Covid-19, rural teacher housing. 
 
Rural professional housing program.  2.25 million 
Senior citizen housing development fund:  1.75 million is the same 
 
Had 6700 Alaskans apply for COVID-19 rent/mortgage relief.  Average monthly rent $1100  Mortgage 
$1400 
 
Mike:  What is the outlook for recovering that money?  For example, landlords that are in arrears right 
now? 
 
There are mortgage/eviction controls until December.   It is going to be an uphill battle to pay back 6-9 
months’ worth of rent.  Good news is that we went from 16% in May to 10% in August.  How is this 
impacting their credit score? 
 
Rural professional housing program:   Had 30 applicants this past year, an increase in 8 over the past 
year.  Provides housing for teachers, health professionals, and police officers.   
 
This program also helped rebuild the teacher housing after the fire in Hooper Bay.   
 
Public Housing and energy updates.   
 
1349 individuals on wait list for senior and disabled housing.  Number is down 6-6.5%.    
 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


11 


Energy Weatherization program.  Elders caring for grandchildren get bump up priority list.  When all said 
and done, utility cost will lower by 50%.    
 
Went over history of senior housing office.   It was very forward thinking. 
 
Lesley talked to Jim and They got into discussion about AHFC website and the lack of information about 
senior housing.  She called Alaska Housing.  Got in touch with Mark Romack and two weeks later, Senior 
Housing office was back on main page of Alaska Housing.  So calls have increased. Thank you for reaching 
out and helping to fix it.  Paula also sent emails about the situation. 
 
Mike:   There’s a lot of senior housing coming out in the valley and people are noticing and appreciating 
it.    
 
Break 
 
Department of Labor 
Duane Mayes, Director, Division of Vocational Rehabilitation and “Senior Employment Initiative”                                     
Rita Gray, Mature Alaskans Seeking Skills Training (MASST) program  
    
Senior Employment Initiative.  DOL and DVR have 14% of DVR are working in office.  50% working at 
home.  70% is a mix.  Offices closed to the public.  Can serve people with disabilities online.  We have 
been able to get our work done. During first 3 months the numbers dropped because people with 
disabilities were very afraid.  WE went out of our way and created a safe environment.  We’re now back 
at normal numbers.  We hope to maintain that.   
 
With this program we have federal requirements.  If we don’t meet them we are subject to penalties.  
Working to make sure the bill that passes offers those flexibilities.  The pandemic has impacted our 
ability to spend the money.  Had meetings with Sen Sullivan and congressman young to press that we 
have the flexibilities.  Will meet with Murkowski and her staff.  This year is really unusual and we may 
have another year. 
 
Rita will speak to Senior Employment Initiative.  Talked with Lesley about ways to get the word out that 
we are open for business.  One of our top priorities is to be available to our senior population who want 
to work.  Did a video of the dog explaining the senior initiative and it’s gotten a lot of hits.  
 
Lesley is part of a task force that we’ve created for COVID-19 19 Employment task force.   We’re now only 
meeting once a month.  Our failure will be lack of communication.  Our success will be our ability to 
communicate with each other.  We need to talk to each other about what programs we’re doing and how 
we can support each other. 
 
Rita:  Wrote article for senior voice.  Got the proclamation.  We have posters made.  Need help with host 
sites.  No agencies willing to take MASST people because everyone is social distancing.  12 people in 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


12 


Anchorage.  3 people in Matsu.  Should be helping 124.  Currently only 54.  Need daily on-site 
supervision.  So many people are suffering. 
 
Wages dropping.  In June $14 an hour.  Now only $12.  Need to help them get resumes and apply for 
work electronically.  Article for senior voice is on page 4.  Beg letter for host sites.  DOL changed their 
database.  They need to answer 5 new questions before their resume is visible.  MASST passed all 
performance measures but this year we have been doing badly due to Covid-19.   DVR is helping us get 
computers into senior’s hands if they’re a client of DVR.  Only a few are open.  Most of them are closed.  
Anchorage senior center is starting to open.   Need help in Anchorage and Mat-Su.   
 
Cheryl:  I haven’t seen video you made about the program.  How do I get people to now how to get ahold 
of you.   
 
Answer:  465-4872 is direct line to get ahold of me. 
 
Cheryl:  Can you do meeting via Zoom with clients? 
 
Answer:   We’ve been doing that. 
 
Office of Long-Term Care Ombudsman 
Stephanie Wheeler, Long-Term Care Ombudsman  
 
Exists in all 50 states.  Exists to serve those in skilled and long-term care homes.  We recruited and have 
new Deputy long term care ombudsman.   Came from Pioneer home.   Covid-19 has really hit home on 
team.  One of our team’s parents died from Covid-19.   
 
Have 70 active volunteers.  Make virtual phone calls to residents.  New volunteer training in December.  
We work remotely from home.  Will do so until December 2020.  Restricted from doing in person visits.  
Will return to in person visits in the near future – late October.   
 
Receiving complaints regarding communication, appointments, visits.  Monthly town hall forums are 
happening, via zoom as well.  Ensuring residents know they should have access to good quality care, right 
to complain, participate in own planning, and care and confidentiality.   Encourage residents to have 
plans to vote and assisting them with transportation to register, mail ballots, and how to make things 
happen.   
 
Assisted them with receiving stimulus payments.   
 
They’re tired of being isolated and want family members to come visit with them.  Helped them 
understand why there’s no visits and when they will reopen.    
 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


13 


They asked questions, what has changed, are staff wearing masks, are receiving meds and medical care, 
are they staying in contact with loved ones. 
 
Feedback:  Most responded positively about care.  There were a handful of issues that resulted in formal 
complaints.  Most concern was social isolation.  Invited rep from Well Connected Program.  Have 
activities and support groups that are also available to them in their own home. 
 
National ombudsman research center doing trainings on person centered care during Covid-19, anxiety 
and grief during Covid-19, and others.  Shared with family members and elders.  It has been vital to them.   
 
Have 70 volunteers across state of Alaska.  Next one December 20.  People who are Friendly, outgoing, 
good listener and a passion for helping seniors are needed.   
 
Started safe re-entry plan.  Should be open towards the end of October. Will be training on PPE and self-
assessment before entering facilities.  Regular access to testing.  Also be communicating – made 
unannounced visits.  When we restart, we’ll be contacting and asking protocol for visitors and 
ombudsmen as well. Won’t visit those who have had a positive case in the past month. 
 
907-334-4480   
 
 


Partner Advocacy Updates 
Marianne Mills, AgeNet President 
 
AgeNet is Alaska’s Association of Senior Service Providers.  Have members all over the state.  Remain in 
own homes and traditional communities for as long as possible.   Offer a whole array for services to keep 
older Alaskans living healthy lives in their own homes. 
 
June:  first virtual annual meeting.   Met via zoom.  Elected new board members. 
 
Kevin Jardell is doing lobbying. 
 
Meet every month now via Zoom.  Now we can actually see faces and backgrounds.   Elected new officers 
 
Encouraging members to meeting with people running for election and start engaging them and think 
about services for older Alaskans.   
 
Both the house and the senate are 1-2 seats away from switching to bipartisan coalitions.   Very 
committed and diligent.  Like coordinating with other groups.   
 
Call 907-723-0226 for Marianne Mills.    
 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


14 


Rosemary:   As we get closer to Feb activities.  Will Kevin be available to work with us as he has in the 
past? 
 
Marianne:  If we ask him to, he will. 
 
Lesley:   As we go into our legislative session, we have legislative teleconference.  AgeNet people 
participate in these quite often.   
 
Gordon:  Encourage your senior centers to sign up to Agenet. It’s beneficial. 
 


3:40 p.m.  Teresa Holt, AARP Alaska State Director 
 
Safe voting initiatives.   Hosted town hall with Lt. Governor and Gail Fenumiai.    
 
AgeSmart.   Have monthly fraud group.   Phishing, email scams.  We are hosting technology and caregiving 
webinar.   Have volunteers that do exhibit tables.  AARP has also done fun events.  Lectures by university 
professors.  Do national promotion of concerts in the regions.   We have doubled our efforts to do community 
challenge grants that make changes for those over 50.  One person did a community garden.  Another put life 
jackets.  Or pollution detectors.  Art installations.  Unalakleet and New Halen are getting picnic tables, and bbq pits 
that are near their senior housing.  Gustavus is working on healthy eating and recreation center.  Petersburg is 
building a park with a covered bench near their senior center with a little garden.    
 
Have a meeting coming up if you have any ideas.  No in person events until the new year.   We will not be doing in 
person events for the legislature.  Will be doing virtual lobbying in Feb. 
 
Paula:   Anchorage for Grandparents raising grandchildren.  Intergenerational playground near senior center.   
 
Teresa:   Would love to work on that idea. 
     
The Association of Mature American Citizens Update       
Cheryl LaFollette and Mike Coons  
 
Mike Coons taking off commissioner hat.     
 
President of the MatSu chapter of AMAC.  Cheryl president of Fairbanks.  New chapter in South 
Anchorage.  Having in person meetings.  Had state legislative candidates speak about campaign.  Turned 
out really well.  Endorsing to vote no on ballot measures 1 & 2.   Education on Covid-19 virus.  Keeping an 
eye on dashboard and informing membership on what is going on.   
 
ProBono legislation for doctors to treat people.  Doctors paid back by federal government.    
 
Pushing repeal of safe harbor act.   Executive order.   AMAC was represented for and invited to the 
signings of his executive orders. 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


15 


 
Pam:  survival rate at this time? 
 
Mike thinks it’s under 1% mortality rate.   
 
Lesley:   If anyone is interested in being part of AMAC it’s free.  AARP also has a reduced rate.  Not 
plugging either one, just informing. 
 


4:00 p.m.  On a mission for Veteran’s housing 
   Nona Safra 
 
67,000 veteran population in Alaska.  Most served during Gulf War.   12% of pop   25.7% have disability. 
 
35% of veterans with tBI have moderate to severe hopelessness.  Factor in homelessness.   Need access 
to housing during treatment.  What do they want for housing?  Younger ones 30-50ish are less than 
positive about VA and Pioneer Home.  Like living in barracks.  Unmarried want a pod of tiny houses with 
larger common buildings.  They want privacy, independence, and mobility.  Want communal greenhouse. 
 
Married wants small apartments with access to amenities.  Fairbanks and Kenai peninsula are the main 
sites.    
 
Operation Tiny House  - helps veterans build homes.   
 
49 tiny homes that provide veterans with homes and services.  Would be willing to work with 
organization in Alaska. 
 
Racine, Wisconsin.  Tiny homes and community center.  Encourages the vet to not hide in the home.  
Offer classes.    
 
Hope resources and Raven’s Roost in Anchorage.   
 
Two builders in Big Lake specialize in it. 
 
Cost can be under 60K.   biker group called viper can lower the cost.   Partner with trade unions and 
apprenticeships.   Younger veterans would help more vulnerable. 
 
VA has locations all over the state but only half of them are registered with VA h 
 
Jim:  Could have developer pursue the tax credit program.  Any veteran from any walk of life.   
 
A lot of operators and developers in lower 48 may not know that we have a very large population of 
seniors.    







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


16 


 
Build for the future.  That’s us because we’ll be needing them.   
 
4:10 p.m.  Public Comment 
 
None. 
    
4:25 p.m.  ACoA Commissioner Comments on Local Issues Affecting Seniors 


What are you hearing from seniors in your community? 
Last Comments 
 


Mike:  Vaccine is individual choice.  He plans on taking the vaccine.  It’s not a one thing deal.  Also working 
on therapeutics.    


 
Pamela:   Doesn’t support Covid-19 vaccine at all.  
 
Gordon clarified that we will follow all public health guidelines and recommendations. 
 
Bob:   Covid-19 virus.  Isolation wearing population down.  Congregate settings are reopening but the 


isolation is still wearing people down.  There have been prgraoms to get services to seniors but the 
isolation is wearing people down. 


 
Paula:   Isolation is getting people down.  Inability to hug and be with people is hard.  Looking at reopening 


in phases and limited phases.  Zoom has helped, especially as we move towards winter and people 
staying in because the weather.  Love ordering the groceries online.  It’s a challenge to continue 
feeling isolated. 


 
Nona:   Haven’t been able to travel like normally do.   All trips have been cancelled.  Haven’t cancelled on 


trip which gives me hope.  In the midst of moving.  Living in Anchor Point has made it really 
difficult.  Moving to Homer to have better access to medical services and food shopping.   


 
Mike:   Concerned about safety and security and what’s happening in lower 48.   Anarchists and BLM 


concerned it may come to Alaska.  Fearful that riots will get worse before better.   Are they even 
going to be safe going to election polls.   


 
Bob P.  Fewer people at the VA when he goes.  It used to be a social opportunity now it’s zoom meetings.  


Loss of sociality but don’t have the ability for comraderie.   
 
Cheryl P.   Been really rough not being able to hug.  Senior Center is distributing stuff out doors.  *feed 


broke up*   Have to wear masks in community room.   *feed gone*  Play cards with masks 
on.   


 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


17 


Rosemary:   “She who dies with most fabric wins”   Four months ago never heard of Zoom now can’t live 
without it.  Life has changed a lot.  Wish I had a dollar for every time I go back to car to get 
mask.  My cohort of people are getting tired of living different lifestyle.  Personally, have 8 
negative Covid-19 tests.  Juneau is trying to fix lack of assisted living options.  


 
John Lee:   As director of SDS, get a lot of concerns.  They are thankful for the protections put in place.   


They are also having problems with isolation and not seeing loved ones.  Non Covid-19 – 
access to services in rural locations.  Still have waiting list on IDD waiver.  Lack of affordable 
housing for seniors.  A host of things have not changed.    


 
Sandra:  Gone. 
 
Pam:   1/3 scared 1/3 on fence 1/3 business as usual during Covid-19.  I will hug and hope I get coronavirus 


and get over it.  You guys are amazing.   
 
Jim.  Don’t have anything. 
 
Kelda:   Will talk tomorrow morning. 
 
Lesley:   Great meeting.   Agree with what hearing about isolation.  It’s not the same through the screen.  


People are bracing for what’s next.   Some people might get another check from 
government.  But what happens when the safety nets are gone.   


 
Gordon:  It’s easy for many of us.  But there are those who are hunkering down without much means and 


living on food that’s dropped off.  Seen increase in deaths and hospitalization due to lack of 
activity and health and lack of transportation to services.  The present situation is not stable.  
You can live for awhile in a lifeboat but eventually you have to start rowing.   


 
Riki:  Suggest intergeneration park to contact headstart.    


 
5:30 p.m.  Adjourn 
 


Wednesday, September 23, 2020 
 
The training portion of the ACoA meeting will take place on Wednesday, September 23 and will be 
accessible by Zoom or teleconference. Public members are invited to participate, please call in using the 
toll-free number 1-800-315-6338, pass code 53250# or via Zoom.   
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/9910842668?pwd=R1FERThwYmZ2MkQrNjQzTTVYL2hOUT09 
 
Meeting ID: 991 084 2668 
Passcode: 907 



https://zoom.us/j/9910842668?pwd=R1FERThwYmZ2MkQrNjQzTTVYL2hOUT09





ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


18 


One tap mobile 
+13462487799,,9910842668# US (Houston) 
+16699006833,,9910842668# US (San Jose) 
       
9:00 a.m. Call to order.  Roll Call, Announcements & Introductions  
 
   
9:05 a.m. Senior and Disabilities Services Grants 
  Lisa Morley 
 
Aging services network includes the Administration on Community Living.  Department of Health and 
Social Services, Division of Senior and Disabilities Services.  Alaska Mental health Trust Authority, Long 
Term Care Ombudsman, Tribal Partners, Alaska Commission on Aging, Local Providers, Caregivers, and 
older Alaskans.  The SDS programs for seniors include:  Adult Protective Services, Personal Care Services 
for Medicaid recipients. The Alaskans Living Independently Waiver provides home and community based 
services for seniors who meet Nursing Home Level of Care (NFLOC) for those who qualify for Medicaid.  
Community First Choice provides HCBS for seniors who meet nursing home level of care, includes person 
case services.  General relief: Emergency placement in assisted living homes for needy adults. If someone 
is in the hospital and is being discharged.  If they have no income, they will be placed in an assisted living 
home.  The ALH receives a pretty low rate - $70  per day for the placement.  Grant services: Home and 
community based services for seniors via state and federal grants.  Medicare information office.   
 
Mike:  What does the Medicare information office, I have only known to call Medicare at federal level.  
We’re able to talk to them if I have a problem with Medicare billing Medicare anything?    
 
Lisa:  Yes. Definitely.  They provide Medicare counseling. And I’ll get to that slide.  They also do training 
for Part D open enrollment.  They do trainings.  I think they’re doing 4 trainings in the evening this week. 
 
When you look at the continuum of care, the grant services are at the lower end because they’re less 
costly.   They’re federal programs based on the federal model serving seniors to provide them with, for 
instance, a meal, a ride some social interaction. That will often help them to remain independent longer. 
And it has shown to be a cost savings to keep them from entering a nursing home earlier than they 
actually need to. 
The grant services provide support to older Alaskans and their caregivers who may not qualify for other 
programs but still need support to remain in their homes and communities.  Services are targeted to 
Older Alaskans who are at risk of nursing home placement.  The must be 80 and over, live alone, have 
difficulty performing one or more independent activities of daily living (shopping, cooking, housework, 
laundry) or have dementia.    
 
WE offer these grants through a competitive process and are administered statewide.  Grant programs 
for seniors administered by SDS are:   Adult Day Care, Aging and Disability Resource Centers, Alzheimer’s 
Disease and Related Disorders Education and Support, Centers for Independent Living, Health Promotion 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


19 


and Disease Prevention, Medicare Information Office, National Family Caregiver Support Program, 
Nutrition, Transportation and Support Services, Nursing Facility Transition, Senior In-Home, and Senior 
Residential Services – basically just providing support to rural assisted living homes. 
 
The way to access these services is through the Aging and Disability Resource Centers (ADRC)  ADRC are 
great resource if you ever have any questions about services in your area.  There are currently 6 ADRCs 
servicing Alaska and they’ll connect you with any service in your area. 
 
Adult Day Care is a center based program that provides therapeutic activities in a safe environment for 
individuals with dementia or who are not safe at home by themselves.  This is a congregate setting so 
many of these have been closed during COVID-19.  They’re trying to deliver care to these individuals in a 
different way. 
 
ADRD Education, Training and Support: This grant goes to Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska and provides 
education and training to providers, individuals, and caregivers specific to ADRD.   
 
Centers for Independent Living:  This is a new program that has recently come to SDS.  While new, this is 
new – it’s been about four years actually – but it was managed before by the division of vocational 
rehabilitation.   They do a lot for seniors also.  The population they serve is anyone of any age who has a 
disability.  If you need lending equipment, home modification or independent living services, this is who 
you contact.  Independent living skills training, transition services, peer support, advocacy and 
information and referral. 
 
Health Promotion Disease Prevention:  Evidence based activities for seniors that reduce the risk of 
disease, disability, and injury.  Many of the Senior Centers receive funds to do these programs such as 
exercise, fall prevention, Tai Chi, and they have been shown to reduce the risk of disease, disability, and 
injury.   
 
For the National Family Caregiver Support Program, The care giver is the client, so the caregiver receives 
the support.  This includes counseling, education, respite, support groups, information, and legal 
assistance to help the caregiver continue caring for their loved one at home.   
 
Nursing Facility Transition, provides assistance moving from a nursing home to a lower level of care. 
 
Nutrition, transportation and support services.   These grants provide congregate and home delivered 
meals, transportation, volunteer services, homemaker, nutrition education, outreach, and legal 
assistance.  Most of your senior centers rely on the NTS grants or the Title 6 grants for their operations. 
 
Senior In-Home Services – These are a little bit more one on one for seniors who have a little bit of higher 
needs.  Provides Chore services, case management, respite and supplemental services that will pay for a 
lifeline or other needs that a senior has that aren’t covered by other programs.  These are for low income 
seniors.  







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


20 


 
Senior Residential Services for Elders in rural communities (Tanana and Galena) 
 
This is an overview of our Caregiver Connection Pilot Project.  The Caregiver Connection provides people 
helping someone with dementia assistance in managing their stress and burden.  The program includes 
two parts.  The first is a proven caregiver stress reduction process called TCARE and funds to pay for 
services such as respite or adult day care.  TCARE was developed by Rhonda Montgomery.  TCARE 
includes a short questionnaire that identifies whether and how caregiving is impacting your stress.  The 
results of that questionnaire determine if you are eligible for the program.  If you are eligible, a trained 
specialist will work with you to develop a plan for reducing your stress. 
 
A lot of this also includes coaching.  It’s not just taking an assessment and here are your services. There’s 
a lot of coaching and a lot of follow-up. It’s a really exciting program and it’s been really great to work 
with Alzheimer’s resource and the Municipality ADRC. 
 
The program is a pilot being operated by the Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska in partnership with the 
State of Alaska Senior and Disability Services and the Municipality of Anchorage ADRC.  The pilot is only 
offered in Anchorage, but if it proves successful, the goal is to expand it statewide.  
 
The Medicare Information Office provides one on one counseling.  Assists with enrollment and 
coordination of benefits including:  Choosing a prescription drug plan, Part B and Medi-gap plan.  
Understanding Medicare premiums and co-insurance costs.  They also provide counseling on different 
benefits such as Medicaid, Disability, and Social Security.  Can assist with enrollment and coordination of 
benefits.   They are very, very knowledgeable. 
 
The total senior grant funding totals $16,195,518. Adult Day is $1,517,466.  ADRC is $885,000.   ADRD Ed 
and Training is $346,036.  Centers for Independent Living is $1,256,044.  Health Promotion is $163,302.  
Nursing Facility Transition is $60,000.  The National Family Caregiver is $1,295,368.  Nutrition, 
Transportation, and Support is $7,620,424.  Senior In-Home is $2,651,868.  Senior Residential Services is 
$400,000.    
 
Stories from Grantees – Helps them live in their home and live independently, avoid or delay placing 
aged family members into nursing care facilities – which often means leaving the community in which 
they’ve spent their lives.   Legal services really help them prevent loss of homes, financial abuse, and help 
clients obtain benefits essential to independence and well-being.   We hear that services improve the 
health status of clients, through better nutrition, physical activity and creative cognitive engagement, 
through transportation that ensures access to needed services and decreases social isolation.  
Congregate meals provide important nutrition, social sharing, and even decrease in blood pressure and 
cholesterol.  Home delivered meals not only provide food to those unable to leave their homes: the 
delivery drivers also provide important personal contact and an eye on the welfare of clients.   During 
COVID-19 the senior centers have stopped providing congregate meals and have been doing pick-up or 
home delivered meals but the staff have been doing phone calls and check-ins on the clients to make 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


21 


sure they’re still safe and receiving adequate nutrition. We hear the many hours of service provided by 
senior volunteers benefit their communities and provide a sense of pride and continuing contribution.  
Senior volunteers include foster grandparents, senior companion and Retired Senior volunteers.  Those 
are very important to the entire community because they serve not only seniors but also children.   
 
Questions & Comments: 
 
Gordon:  Thank you for your presentation. Switching hats to our Anchorage Senior Activity Center -  Our 
medicare office is uses a lot particularly for people turning 65 and helps them choose which Medicare 
part D to choose. We tie it in with our benefit enrollment center, so if they qualify for one they may 
qualify for another. I don’t think we’re the only center where they use the Medicare Information Office 
as part of something else.   
 
 
Sandra:  Good Morning and thank you.  I am not sure if this is a question for Lisa or Lesley.  It’s on the 
Alzheimer’s.  I saw numbers as far as the increases we’ve had in dementia patients.  It looks like we’ve 
gone from 3500 to 8000 from 2010 to 2019 which seems like a large amount.  My first question is, is that 
normal and how does that compare  as far as an increase in dementia patients.  I also noticed with our 
population.   Where does Alaska stand compared to other states?  Maybe that 2015 report might answer 
that.   
 
Lisa:   Alaska does have the first or second fastest growing senior population per capita.  The prevalence 
of Alzheimer’s increases the older you get.  Because our senior population in increasing this means the 
85+ population increasing which increases ADRD population.  It’s a difficult thing to treat and take care 
of.  ALH, besides the pioneer’s home – we don’t have a lot of assisted living or residential support to 
clients so It’s really important to support caregivers.  The burnout rate is so high. 
 
Sandra:  Thank you for the information.  It seemed like a high number but if we’re first or second then 
that makes sense.  Do we have a list of senior centers in the state?  I know we’re getting some 
presentations but I’m a big picture person.  It would be good to know how many communities across the 
state have senior centers and it was tied into what you said.  They’re not always prepared to work with 
dementia patients.  It would be good to know.  
 
Lisa: SDS has a list of grantee senior centers and Medicaid providers, not all senor centers are grantees.  
They could be title 6 grantees.  It seems like it would be a good list to do regardless of their funding 
source. 
 
Sandra :  It seems like it would be very helpful to have as a resource.  Part of it is, in our division we track 
community information.  Being on the commission has really given me a lot of ideas on ways that maybe 
we can help spread the word and be available.  It would be really nice to be looking at a community and 
seeing if we have a senior center and what kind of resources that might have. We have clinic and school 
information and that kind of thing.  That was the reason I was asking.   







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


22 


 
Lisa:  Who do you work for? 
 
Sandra:  I’m with the Department of Commerce, DCRA.  We have a community database online.  If you 
haven’t, check that out. It’s got a lot of good information. We’re just trying to collect information on 
communities as well as present it.  If there’s a way we could help in that area it would be fantastic. 
 
Any other questions from Commissioners 
 
John Lee:  Regarding the questions regarding the increase in ADRDs.  As Lisa said that big population 
bubble of seniors who are turning 80+ years, so we’re expecting to see an increase.  I have asked 
Evergreen Economics that produces the Mason Report for the state to do an analysis of the population 
and see if they can come up with some predictors of what it will look like five years from now, 10 years 
from now so we can start planning.  Once that is done, hopefully in time for session, I can share that with 
you and maybe at the subsequent meeting I can provide that information.  That’s something that we are 
concerned about and making sure that we’re ready for that.  
 
Gordon:  I think maybe you’re also a victim of your own success. As you get more programs out to the 
more isolated areas, not including the urban areas, that don’t normally get services, you’re going to 
identify more people, particularly if you can identify services for them.  Some of the data I have seen 
shows that Alaska is unusual as it has a number of people who live independently despite significant 
cognitive decline, moreso than in other state  I think that is a contributing factor for the more 
identification of ADRD as opposed to when you don’t have the services and you’re not identifying them.   
 
 
Lesley:  We have a senior center list that we’re working on updating. We’re finding out if they’re open 
and if they’re serving meals.   When they come in for a meal or ride, the federal mandate is that you can’t 
charge a specific amount but you can ask for a donation.  Some senior centers have suggested donation 
for those under 60 and those over 60.  Did you talk about Covid-19 funding and what it was used for?  
Can you give us an update.  
 
Lisa:  Alaska received two additional grants.  One of them was under the Families First Act and the 
second under cares act.  Because we received Title 3 funds issued under the Older Americans act, it’s a 
formula grant that every state and territory receives.    We received additional funding for COVID-19 
through these appropriations.  Through the first round of funding we increased our Transportation and 
meal delivery so they could expand service delivery because congregate sites closed.  They were given 
money to provide home delivered or pick up meals.  That was end of FY20.  In FY21 included more 
additional funds for NTS providers to use to continue services and make sure seniors were safe.  Wanted 
to maintain staff.  All communities support job.  Not only support seniors but also those who work at 
senior centers.  If they had to modify jobs to do it differently then they were able to do that.  SDS has 
about 3 million left from Cares Funding which is going out in RFP that will be released this week. Those 
funds are not just available to NTS but to all senior grantees throughout state.  In order have to be an 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


23 


existing grantee.  We’re not able to start up new contracts.  Available for any special project. We really 
want partnerships. We want this money to be infused into communities and help people as much as we 
can.  Create a more sustainable source of food.  Greenhouses or planter boxes.  So that it really involves 
seniors and community.  The RFP will be going out this week.   Only available through end of this fiscal 
year, then they will go away.  Enhance senior centers if they need to purchase additional equipment to 
increase capacity.  Do training for virtual connection for seniors or their staff?  Lots of suggestions in the 
RFP for how to use these funds.    
 
Gary to Chuck foster:  What’s happening in the valley in terms of funding? 
 
Chuck:  We’re doing fairly well set.  Unforecastable expenses will come primarily with reopening.  We 
have been in smooth flow since July.  Having programs operating smoothly.  Got funding from Meals on 
Wheels America – that was CARES Act Funding.  We also got funding from Alaska Foundation and the 
MatSu Community Foundation. And cares funding that went to PPE and cleaning.  Also been fortunate 
with housing.  We only have one tenant having difficulty making payments.   Have incurred expensive 
cleaning bills.  State grants are significant but there’s no way we could cover all the COVID-19 related 
expenses with just those funds.  We were also able to get funding from the NonProfit Relief fund.   
 
Thank you to Lisa and Kristin Cox for moving swiftly in getting the funding out. 
 
Lisa:  Also additional cares act got additional funds for assistive technology.   
 
10:00 a.m. ACoA Budget 
  Lesley Thompson 
 
Hilary Porter put this together for us.  Has Core Services and accomplishments.  Should probably put this 
in board packets from now on.  Most of budget is in salaries.  Michelle’s position is in SDS budget.   
The governor cut all the travel in half.  Have some instate travel.    Have $10, 500 for commissioners’ 
travel.   Also travel to get Michelle around for this fiscal year. 
 
They’ve cut the budget for certain services but what they’ve done is allocate other divisions to cover the 
cost.   Have 5K to upgrade the office furniture.  Had left over money from the trust but OMB took it on 
June 1.    
 
It’s a pretty straightforward budget.   
 
We didn’t use all the funding last year because of the vacancy.  SDS was able to use the money in a 
different way.    
 
In December we’ll have Hilary come and explain it much better.    
 
John, can you add something? 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


24 


 
John Lee:   The budget it tight.  It has impacted every department and division within the state.  Need to 
learn to have virtual meetings instead of travel.   
 
Lesley:  Also, we’re not charged for our rent space here, it’s covered by SDS.   
 
John:  Expect telework agreements to go beyond the year.   The SDS office is moving from downtown 
location to off Bragaw.  It’s a smaller space.  Will look at Atwood building.  They might be able to work 
out of there.  
 
Rosemary:   See in narrative that they identified the work that gets done on State plan. Will that be in 
this year’s budget or budget next year: 
 
Lesley:  When doing the budget we thought to ask the trust to get money to help with contractor 
consultant for new state plan.  They were going to put it through to general grant services fund.  The 
trust will give us additional funding for long range plan. 
 
Rosemary:  Even though this is a federal requirement? 
 
Lesley:  They did last time, too.   
 
There is a possibility where we will be combining offices.  We may go with SDS or someone might come 
down here.  Need to be flexible. 
 
Gordon:  This is the budget we have now.  Legislature will be coming back.  Governor may make changes.  
Keep that in mind.   John, will we still have access to conference room in new building. 
 
John:  Definitely.  It will be a better one. 
 
Lesley:  Grateful we have a state that supports seniors.  Need to work on what our priorities are during 
this legislative session. 
 
Gordon:  New ED will be working from home for the rest of the year.  Will need access to conference 
room. 
 
Mike:  Any ideas for how we’re going to present and justify a future trips out to different senior centers.  
Bang for the buck aspect.  Those trips have paid dividends beyond belief.  I hope we’re figuring out how 
we go to finance and show cost benefit of going on these annual trips.  WE get invaluable information 
that we’re able to expound on.  We need to hone in on that.  
 
Gordon:  Mike maybe you can help us write that justification.  Many here know the limitations of 
technology in these villages.  Outreach worker will be useless if just in Anchorage and Juneau.  We have 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


25 


an educated SDS staffing in there.  That’s why they respect us.  John and Tony need to be with us in these 
communities.   Need to see people directly. 
 
Paula:  Do need to do things differently.  As Michelle here, they have boots on ground.  Need to build 
partnerships.  Groups of two rather than groups of 10.   Need to be fiscally responsible.  There is a 
statutory requirement to go into these areas.   
 
Mike:   I totally agree with Paula.  Maybe if we can look at a region and split and cover a wider portion of 
the region.  We could probably even do that throughout course of year.   Maybe we could go in May and 
a different one in August.  Maybe three.  It’s a bigger bang for the buck.  In those particular areas we can 
key in where we need John, or Jim, or Kelda.  I would be more than willing to help out with justification 
to go into these areas. 
 
Gary:  We need to public health to deal with virus. 
 
Paula:  Part of our plan is public outreach statutorily.  We need to do it. 
 
 
10:15 a.m. Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Report 
  Kelda Barstad, Program Officer 
 
Good morning.  Thank you for time on the agenda for a variety of topics that are of interest to both the 
trust and the commission on aging. My slides focus on our program area topics and as well as the FY 
22/23 budget, and how we get our grant money out the door.  
 
My name is Kelda Barstad. I am a program officer with the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority. You 
heard from our CEO, Mike Abbot, yesterday about how our Trust is structured.  He talked briefly about 
why we exist, how we earn our money, and how we invest our money.   The purpose of all of that is to 
serve our beneficiaries.  The Alaska Mental Health trust authority side of the house works on those 
program issues to improve the continuum of care.  Mike went over the beneficiary categories yesterday. 
 
Focus of our work is on our beneficiaries and that is what our trust does and who we serve and it’s why 
we implement the programs that we do.  
 
The trust is a multifaceted organization that focuses both on a macro level and helps to fund the micro 
level where we are working to influence policy, reduce stigma and collaborate with partners, local and 
state government to help improve programs for beneficiaries.   
 
Focus areas: 
 
Housing and home and community-based services (HHCB) 
 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


26 


People have housing and a continuum of services and supports. 
Mental Health and addiction intervention 
Beneficiary employment and engagement 
Disability justice 
 
HHCB – prevent homelessness.  It takes a considerable effort to help someone once a person becomes 
homeless. They often experience violence and serious health problems while living on the street.  
Housing first provides stability.   
 
Also investing in early childhood efforts and workforce development because the ACEs one experiences 
in childhood can lead to homelessness.   
 
Workforce Development is also important because we need an experienced and stable workforce to help 
our beneficiaries.   
 
We would like to stablish a traumatic and acquired brain injury council.  We are updating the ADRD 
roadmap.   
 
We have grants for Assistive technology – saw huge demand out of Covid-19 for these technologies and 
build for zero. 
 
Beneficiary employment and engagement.  Being employed helps improve outcomes.  Beneficiaries work 
with DVR and behavioral health.   Our beneficiaries need to have meaningful and productive 
employment.   Being unemployed has negative outcomes for the beneficiaries. 
 
Disability justice – help prevent beneficiaries from becoming part of the criminal justice system.  Those 
are helped to re-enter the community. 
 
Dementia research has found a link in early childhood. There is often a trauma history or brain injury 
when young.  We want to minimize suffering and help prevent them from becoming beneficiaries.  Get 
services and supports in place to maximize well- being. 
 
Workforce – Shore up direct service provider.  Impacts developmental disabilities and ADRD.   Seeing 
work force shortages.  Getting good staff has been a problem for a while.  How do we recruit and 
maintain this workforce? 
 
Trust budget:  2022-23 budget approved.  Will review to make sure they’re still able to move forward 
with new programs.   
 
Still have road ahead of us to ensure beneficiaries have access to services. 
 
Helping SDS support technology and data analytics.   







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


27 


 
Questions? 
 
Pam:  Do you have programs to help caregivers of people with TABI?  Talk with ADRC or DDRC to see 
what is available.  Caregivers can qualify for respite and other programs.  There are a lot of details.   
 
Rosemary:  Thank you.  Under workforce development – challenges and changes with 3 university 
campuses.  Used to be agreement with universities.   
 
Kelda:  No changes:  Monitoring situation in future.   
 
10:45 a.m. Shelly Zylstra  
 
Thank you for inviting me to the meeting.  Every time on these meetings, I learn so much.   I respect how 
well you work together and get stuff done.   
 
Grandparents raising grandchildren:  Large number of parents incarcerated because of opioid and 
grandparents stepping up to raise them.  There are really stellar examples of states doing well.  Very high 
number of natives.  Due to ICWA they are being placed back in villages with elders, which is good. 
 
Covid-19 money has been spent on salaries that are higher for people who have to come to work and on 
new technology.   Covid-19 has been a challenge from a variety of perspectives.   Covid-19 expenditures 
have been very diverse.  We had one tribe interested in buying small chest freezers for elders because 
they couldn’t get out there with food every day.  There was one request for robotic pets that was denied.   
 
I have offered my boss and my colleagues to step back in.  Alaska is not something that a lot of people 
have a good grasp on.  It’s a huge learning curve.  I want Alaska to continue to be supported.  I want a  
person to have feet on ground and gets it.  Encourage all of you to communicate clearly.  If I can do 
nudging, I can do that.   
 
I will retire on the 2nd day of January.  Please call me as a tour guide for Northwest Washington.   
 
John lee:   Shelly has been a great federal partner who has our needs at heart and advocates for us.  
Thank you. 
   
11:15 a.m. Senior Centers and their Stories 
  Keren Kelly, Homer Senior Center 
 
We have changed drastically.   We decided we could choose whether this was a Hardship or Opportunity 
for our region.   COVID-19 closed doors on March 13.  Everything shut down.   Most important was the 
assisted living losing visits from the family.  The residents lost visits but the caregivers also lost the 
support.   Adult day shut down.  Nutrition lost revenue but we increased take-out meals by 10%.   







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


28 


Assisted living:   We spent $56 K on PPE.   Had 3 positive tests.  Caused a lot of fear and anxiety.  Had to 
issue five 30 day notices because we didn’t have the staff to serve them.  It was the first time ever we 
had no one apply for jobs.  
 
Issued retention bonus for those who stayed during Covid-19.  New hire bonus and employee referral 
bonus.  Pay differential for Covid-19 differential really helped retain staff.  However, it’s not sustainable. 
 
Focused on infection control three times per shift.  Initiated telehealth visits which have been fabulous 
for residents.  Had been wanting those for winter before this.  It’s been great and easier on residents.  
Redesigned hair solon.  Includes diabetic foot specialist.   
 
Created isolation wing for positive Covid-19.  With regular testing, we needed a place to isolate them.  
We converted four apartments into two rooms.   Made PPE easier to manage.  All of curtains washable 
and everything is easy to wash down.   
 
Adult day took the biggest hit.   We remodeled ventilation system.  Installed easy to sanitize floor.   
Removed all board games and books, stuffed animals and puzzles.   
 
75” smartboard where they can go on virtual tours of museums and other places.  
 
We bought five 27” touch screen computers they can use to listen to music, read books, watch movies, 
play card games, board games & puzzles.  They can also do letter writing.    
 
In the dining room we redesigned congregate meals.  All tables are now 7 feet apart.   We decided on 
restaurant style.  Clients have to make reservations.  They sign in with an electronic card.  They have 3 
options for lunch.  We have extended hours into evening.  If you can’t come in for lunch, can come in 
during evening.   We removed buffet tables and salad bar. We installed a new ventilation system.  Tables 
have plexiglass dividers.   
 
Biggest effects?  Social isolation.  Mental Health disparities.  It has impacted their physical and mental 
health.  Separation form the community.   These are not just isolated to seniors but staff and others.  It is 
a loss that we’re all going through.   
 
Wear your mask and stay six feet apart.  The whole United States needs to realize the seniors do matter.  
Their children are also lost without them.    
 
John:   Thank you for your presentation.  Caregivers are suffering from PTSD.  We need to recognize and 
support caregivers.  Their well-being impacts your ability to do your operation.  Your solutions were 
innovative.  Would love to see some of your designs.   
 
Gordon:  We appreciate having a live person.  Glad to hear you are extending your hours into dinner.  
Many are struggling with how to open congregate meals.   Well organized and well thought out.   







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


29 


 
Nona:   I will be seeing more of you once I move to Homer.  You’re going in a really good direction. 
 
Karen:  Will do a once a week vegan meal for our vegans.    
 
Nona:   Right after Covid-19 hit, I met with her in person.  Glad to see all the changes you made.  
Awesome job.   
 
Karen:  Those that stayed on and stuck it out have done a fabulous job. 
 
Chuck foster from Wasilla Area Seniors 
 
Many of the challenges she faced are common to senior centers.  Here at Wasilla Area Seniors, we have a 
senior center in Wasilla and also in Houston.  We are able to collaborate with Palmer and Talkeetna and 
that has been a real source of resiliency.   We operate housing, NTS, and senior in-home services.  We do 
not provide adult day as Palmer does that.   
 
Were able to garner community support and continued housing and in home services for those seniors 
who wanted us.  1/3 to 40% didn’t want to continue services.  We were able to get PPE.  The group 
activities continued outside or on zoom.  A lot of participants didn’t adapt.  We haven’t had them in 
exercise program since beginning of March.   We’re still trying to attract them to virtual.  Our health club 
is still open but with reservations and increased cleaning and sanitizing.  We don’t enforce mask wearing 
for visitors but do for staff.   We provide physical space for them.  Once Strong Seniors moved indoors 
they immediately grew.  It increases the cleaning bill because of the additional space needed.   We have 
not reopened meals but are hoping to on October 5th.  We are waiting for the seniors to tell us to come 
back inside.   It will be served by staff.  We are thinking about expanding to providing an evening meal 
but would like to continue the takeaway option.  It’s been very popular with seniors.   We’re looking to 
serve 110, 000 meals.  The majority are home delivered.  We’re providing about 350 per day right now.    
 
Gordon:  Masks are optional? 
 
Chuck:  Yes, they’ll wear a mask until they get to their spot but they’ll take it off when they get to their 
station.  It’s by choice but it’s not a requirement.   
 
Noon  AmeriCorps RFP Grants – Paula Pawlowski 
 
My last paying job was running the Americorps program for the state.  It is housed in CCED.  What we 
didn’t have was programs for seniors.   Vista programs have the senior programs.  I thought it important 
to know that we have senior programs.   
 
Sandra?  Serve Alaska handles the statewide Americorp program.  It is run through Community and 
regional affairs.  They are working on 5 year plan.  3 program staff.  Katie Abbot is Executive Director. 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


30 


 
Five programs that we have grant agreements with are: 
 
Ruralcap 
Sitka Seniors 
Public defender 
United way of Southeast Alaska 
Student conservation association 
 
RFP is open.  It is closing on Friday.  Commission is eligible to apply.  One for program grant for run an 
Americorp program.  Americorp planning grant for those thinking about starting a program.   
 
Two senior corp groups -   There is RSVP in Pribilof Islands and elder mentor foster grandparent run by 
Ruralcap. 
 
If you want more information, I would be happy to help. 
 
Paula:  Overview of what some of the bush areas are doing with seniors? 
 
Primary focus with city governments.  Help them with everything from doing elections to doing 
resolutions.  Influx of fishery disaster requests.   Senior items – working with elders and trying to be safe 
with Covid-19.  Administering Cares grant.  Community funds assisting senior services. 
 
Have used funds to reimburse elders to make masks.  It got PPE needed but also engaged senior in the 
community.  (Hooper Bay)    
 
Tracked travel bans and strict quarantining.  It’s been a big effort.   
 
Lesley:   I was really involved with the VISTA program.  I put link on group chat to RFP link.   Big one was 
working with Salvation Army to do emergency preparedness.  Really targeted seniors.  The senior center 
really liked working with them.  There is room for growth in this area.  Should be something that maybe 
someone goes and talks around.  Senior Centers could get Americorps volunteers.   Vista does more the 
development piece.    
 
Sandra:  I am unsure about what a member costs.    
 
Lesley:  when do RFPs come out? 
 
Sandra:  It’s a five year program.  One here is a one year. 
 
Paula:  It’s complex.  Margie what can you add about how long a program lasts? 
 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


31 


Margy Hughes:  Not sure which senior programs there are currently as it’s run out of Seattle .  Americorp 
are 1 year grants with two year extensions.  Recompete every 3 years.  RFP is every year.   
 
Comments: 
 
Bob:  Nothing to add.  Good presentations 
 
Nona:  Appreciate all the presentations.  Glad we got to do the meeting. 
 
Paula:  Hope it was helpful for everyone.  Looking at budget because we are looking at cuts.  Looking 
forward to December meeting. 
 
Rosemary:  Presentations were really informative.  Thank you to Lesley and Michelle for putting it all 
together. 
 
Pamela:  Incredible presentations.  Learned a lot.  Heartbreaking to hear it that this is even happening.  
Hope it ends soon.  Hope it goes back to normal.   Kudos to Karen in Homer. 
 
Cheryl:  Thank everyone for presentation.  Learned a lot and grateful to be part of group.   
 
Sandra:  Learned a lot.  Curious.   Like having actionable items.  Are there to do lists?  I would be happy to 
get assigned a task to help. Perhaps doing more research on Americorp? 
 
Gordon:  We have a bunch of self-starters.  Keep in mind we will be having a teleconference in later 
October that will have action.   
 
John Lee:  Thank you to Lesley for putting it together.   Kara and SDS team for helping set up call and 
technology.   Enjoyed the presentations, especially senior centers: 
 
Bob P.:   Definitely appreciated  
 
Jim:   Two things:   Yesterday’s comments – working relationship with not only this group.  And the 
commission on aging.   Very unique relationships.  Impressive that this has been going on for 30 years.  
Hopefully, it will go for another 30.   
 
Listened to people talk about Covid-19 19 issue.  My mother is in long term care in NC advanced 
dementia.   Son # 1 lives an hour away knows nothing.  Son 2 lives far away and knows a lot.  Trying to 
explain to mother why you can’t travel is very hard.  Have to repeat the conversation every time we talk.  
Facility closed. Challenging.  Had asymptomatic individual and it spread throughout the facility.  They 
handled it well.  Mother dodged it.  Got case count down to one.  Exploded again.  She was not so lucky 
next time.  We are very fortunate to have this team. 
 







ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
September 22 & 23, 2020 


Via Zoom  
Draft Minutes 


ACoA Quarterly Meeting 
September 22 & 23, 2020 
Via Zoom and Teleconference 


32 


Lesley:  Glad to have Michelle here.  It’s been a great start.  Remind people to do conflict of interest.    
 
Gordon:  Thank you. 
 
Kelda:  Very much appreciate the partnership with ACoA,  I am always open for further questions.  Feel 
free to get in touch with me.   
 
Margie:   Thank you for allowing me to attend: 
 
Gordon:  Thank you to Cassandra Lynch.    
 
Cassandra:  The presentations were good and I enjoyed them. 
 
Nona & Bob moved to adjourn. 
 
12:30 p.m. Adjourn 





		Structure Bookmarks

		Tuesday, September 22, 2020 

		Wednesday, September 23, 2020 













 


ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
Draft Board Meeting Agenda: December 1 & 2, 2020 


VIA Zoom 
 


Call to order: Meeting was called to order by Chair Gordon Glaser at 9:00 a.m. on December 1, 2020.  


Roll Call: ACoA Commissioners present were: Gordon Glaser, Chair; Bob Sivertsen, Vice Chair; and 
ACoA Commissioners, Nona Safra, Mike Coons, Pam Samash, Rosemary Hagevig, Sandra Moller, 
Paula Pawlowski, Cheryl La Follette, John Lee (during his presentation) and Bob Pawlowski  


ACoA Staff Present: Lisa Morley, Michelle Rogers and Lesley Thompson           


ACTION: Adoption of the draft agenda. Motion was made by Rosemary Hagevig and seconded by 
Bob Sivertsen to accept the December 1 & 2, 2020 draft agenda, Adoption unanimously approved.         
  


Ethics Disclosures – Gordon reminded commission members to sign their disclosures forms and give 
them to Lisa. 


Discussion on meeting minutes. It was decided by consensus that we will change the minutes to 
include: 


1. Roll Call  
2. Approve or revise Agenda 
3. Approve minutes from the previous meeting 
4. Motions made, by whom and if they passed or failed 
5. Audio that can be reviewed if needed    


Bob moved that the Commission adjourned at 4:50 p.m. until tomorrow morning at 9:00 a.m., 
seconded by Rosemary. Adoption unanimously approved. 


 


ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
Draft Board Meeting Minutes: December 2, 2020 


VIA Zoom 
 


Meeting was called to order by Chair, Gordon Glaser at 9:02 a.m.  


Roll Call: ACoA Commissioners present were: Gordon Glaser, Chair; Bob Sivertsen, Vice Chair; and 
ACoA Commissioners, Nona Safra, Mike Coons, Pam Samash, Rosemary Hagevig, Sandra Moller, 
Paula Pawlowski, Cheryl La Follette and Bob Pawlowski 


No action was taken during this part of the meeting as it was a review of the State Plan for Senior 
Services, FY2020 – FY2023. 


Meeting adjourned at 11:55 a.m. 









 


1 
 


Department of Labor and 
Workforce Development 


 
DIVISION OF VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION 


Anchorage Administrative Office 
 


3301 Eagle St., Ste. 302 
Anchorage, Alaska 99503 


Main: 907.269.3570 
Toll free: 800-478-4378 


Fax: 907.269.3632 


Department of Labor & Workforce Development 


Division of Vocational Rehabilitation 


Presentation (2-17-2021) 


To 
Alaska Commission on Aging 


 
1. Virtual Update 


a. Online virtual platform 
i. Go To Meetings 


ii. Zoom 
iii. TEAMS (internal) 


b. Application is online 
c. Certain assessment tools are online 
d. Telework is used to mitigate COVID 19 
e. Safety protocols are in place 
f. The impact of telework has benefits to Americans with disabilities 
g. Telework is not for everyone 


 
2. Recently sent a letter to the Alaska delegation for the following: 


a. Direct the Secretary of Education to authorize a waiver of the Maintenance of Effort 
Requirements for FFY 2021 and FFY 2022. This will allow state agencies flexibility to address 
the economic impacts states are facing due to the COVID-19 pandemic and remove the risk of 
financial penalties due to circumstances outside of our control. 


b. Authorize the Secretary of Education to extend period of performance for FFY 2020 until 
September 30, 2022, providing VR program grantees an additional year to obligate and expend 
VR funds, including the 15% Reserve of the VR Award for the provision of Pre-Employment 
Transition Services. 


c. Authorize the Secretary of Education to extend period of performance for FFY 2021 until 
September 30, 2023, allowing VR program grantees an additional year to obligate and expend VR 
funds, including the 15% Reserve of the VR Award for the provision of Pre-Employment 
Transition Services. 


 
3. DVR Priorities 


a. Senior Employment Initiative 
i. Standing committee now in place 


1. MASST 







 


2 
 


2. ACOA 
3. DOL/Division of Employment & Training 
4. DOL/Division of Vocational Rehabilitation 
5. Alaska Adult Education, new acquisition 
6. Senior & Disabilities Services – invited 


ii. Social media 
1. AARP 
2. Podcast 
3. U Tube approval 
4. Facebook 
5. Senior Voice 


iii. Researching best practices in other states 
 
4. Alaska Work Matters Taskforce (time limited) 


a. Support letter from DOL & DHSS Commissioners 
b. Letter from Federal DOL Deputy Secretary Pizzella – Sept 2020 to all governors 
c. ACOA, AMHB, ABADA, AMHTA, SILC, GCDSE support 
d. Administrative support from GCDSE 
e. Taskforce will conduct 4 quarterly meetings 


i. 24 members 
ii. GCDSE will take the lead to appoint the members 


iii. Director Mayes will chair the taskforce  
 
 


As always, we appreciate the support of the ACOA. Thank you!! 


 
 
Sincerely, 
 


 
 
Duane G. Mayes, MS CRC CVE CDMS 
Director, Alaska Division of Vocational Rehabilitation   
Tel: 907-334-5963 
duane.mayes@alaska.gov  
 
 
 



mailto:duane.mayes@alaska.gov






 
 


 
                               


                           
                               


           
 


                                   
                             


                                 
                                   
                                 


                           
                   


 
                                 
                               


                         
 


                               
                               
                           


           
 


 
                                     


                           
       


 
     


                               
                      


  


 


 
 


 


 
                


              
                


      


                  
               


                 
                  


                 
              


          


                 
                


             


                
                
              


      


 
                   


              
    


   
                


           


Alaska Commission on Aging        Ethics Policy 


Policy 
The guidelines for ethical conduct are expressed in State of Alaska Ethics Information for Members of 
Boards and Commissions (AS 39.52). The Ethics Act prohibits substantial and material conflicts of 
interest. Each member should review the Ethics Act and disclose any conflict of interest that occurs 
during their service on the commission. 


Each commission member who becomes aware of a conflict of interest before a meeting or in the course 
of their personal activities should promptly notify the chair of the commission. Furthermore, the chair 
shall disclose the potential conflict of interest to the other members of the commission before any vote 
on the matter, and the disclosure shall be recorded in the commission minutes at the meeting at which 
it is made. In such cases, a written disclosure statement containing all the material facts should be 
submitted. The material facts include the identification of any outside employment or consulting work, 
any membership, affiliation, or relationship that could constitute a conflict. 


A board member will refrain from deliberating, voting, or participating on the matter in which a conflict 
or potential conflict of interest occurs. However, a disclosed conflict of interest shall not bar a 
commission member from participation in commission activities unrelated to the conflict of interest. 


Where doubt arises whether a conflict exists or appears to exist, a written disclosure containing the 
material facts of the situation should be provided to the chair of the commission. The commissioners, 
excluding the interested commissioner, will determine if the situation constitutes a conflict of interest 
and shall determine the required action. 


Dissemination 
Each commission member will be given a copy of this policy and AS 39.52 and asked at each commission 
meeting to disclose any conflicts and sign the attached acknowledgement concerning the report of 
potential conflicts of interest. 


Disclosure and Acknowledgment 
Please describe below any relationships or circumstances in which you are involved that you believe can 
contribute to a conflict of interest (as defined in AS 39.52). 


□ Check if no conflict of interest exists. 


I hereby certify that I have read and understand the commission’s ethics policy and AS 39.52. I agree 
to report promptly any such conflicts that arise in my duties as commissioner and, in other respects, to 
comply with the policy. 


Signature: ____________________________________ Date: _________________ 


11/30/2012 1 





		Date: 







